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Strategic Report
.‘For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

J

Strategic Report

The directors presént their strategic report on the Group for the period ended 31 Jdnuory 2021,

Strategy

The Harvey Nosh Group is a global consultancy providing technology. recruitment and leadership services. We are equipped with a network ot talent
and technology to offer a unique portfolio of services to meet the needs of clients, from the top of an organisation down to the operational level. -

The Group was formed on 25th October 2018 when DBAY Advisors, through Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited, acquired Harvey Nash Group Limited
and allits subsidiaries. The Group subsequently delisted from the AIM and became a wholly owned subsidiary of Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited.
The Group aims to accelerate growth through investments in people, systems, solutions and potentially further acquisitions. .

During the current financial year, the Group acquired Latitude 36 Inc. as part of'i ts strategic expansionin the U.S., the world's Iorgeéi recruitment
market. Latitude 36 Inc. is a leading technology recruitment specialist with operations across the U.S. and India serving an impressive client portfolio.

The addition of Latitude 36 to the Group's existing Harvey Nash U.S. operations creates a combined business that.is now one of.the top 50 largest IT
staffing companies in the U.S., and represents a significant step forward in the Group's North American market footprint. This forms part of the Group's
wider strategy of becoming a global leader in technology recruitment and solutions worldwide, building on the Group's significant presence in Europe.

Review of the business
The progress of Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd is summarised below:

Results and performance

The Group reported an operating profit of £4.7m after exceptional costs associated with acquisitions and transformation programs. Operating profit
_excluding exceptional cosis was £10.1m. Profit before tax for the period including all exceptional items was £2.5m. The directors are satisfied with the
results. ' . .

Key performance indicators (KPIs) .
The directors consider the key performonce indicators are those that communicate the financial performance and strength of the business.

12 month 15 month

period ended ) period ended

31 January " 31 January

2021 2020

) £ 000 £ 000

Total billings - : . 1,017,388 . 1,344,772

Gross profit : ' 95,850 134,432
Gross profit percentage of total bilings ’ ’ 9.42% 9.85%

Operating profit (excluding exceptionals) - ' ) 10,050 - - 12,873

Operating profit ' ) . ) ) ) 4,678 1,323

EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16) ekcluding exceptionals * . ) 18,324 '21,698

EBITDA percentage of gross profit ' ’ ' 19.12% 16.14%

Profit / (loss) before tax ) 2,523 R (2,918)

* EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16) éxcluding exceptionals is calculated by cdding back depreciation of £é.2m and amortisation of £6.1m to operating profit
before exceptionals of £10m. .

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd . : Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Strategic Report

_For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Strategic Reporf continued

Sechon 172 Sfoiement
The board acknowledges Section 172 (1) of the UK Companies Act 2006, and its duty to promote the success of the Company.

A director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most hkely to promore the success of the company for the
benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so has regord {amongst other mctiers) to:
a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term
b) the interesis of the company’'s employees
c) the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment
e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct ™
f) the need to oct fairly between members of the company

The Harvey Nash board takes these obhgohons senously and the directors are aware of their ongoing duties to act for the benefit of its customers
investors and staff. The following section prowdes exomples of how the company directors meet their duties to all siakeholders..

Risk management

The board set a mandate to review ond re-developits nsk moncgement framework over the course of 2020. Consequently a Group nsk ‘Director was
appointed and a new Group risk policy and framework was developed based around the principles of ISO31000. Risk registers are submitted from
across the organisation on a quarterly basis. The audit and risk committee meets twice a year at which Group risks are presénted for consideration.
Additionally, the board is made aware of imminent and high risks, and the framework integrates with a business continuity plan thot can be activated
as necessary.

'People management

During 2020, the board appointed it's first Chief People Officer. Since joining they have infroduced a number of new initiatives including a wellbeing
programme for all staff including an engagement survey to enable staff views and opinions to be heard, an employee benefits scheme and a global’
mentoring schemes. A global diversity, equality & inclusion council was established, including the use of listening groups. These groups give staff
members aspace to confidentially talk about their experiences and provide feedback on ideas which help create an inclusive organisation.

Harvey Nash operates an equal opportunities policy that dims to treat individuals fairly and not to diécriminote on the basis of sex, race, ethnic origin,
disability or any other basis. The Group's policies and procedures are designed to provide for full and fair consideratfion and selection of disabled
applicants, to ensure that they are properly trained to perform safely and effectively and to provide career opportunities that allow them to fulfil their
potential.

Where an employee becomes disabled in the course of their employmenf the Group will actively seek to retain them wherever pos5|ble by making
. adjustments to their work content and environment or by retraining them to undertake new roles.

Business relationships and supply chain

The board is aware of the necessity of maintaining a clean supply chain, free of exploited labour. The Group plans to further i mcrecse the due
diigence it cariies out on new suppliers and has developed a new supplier code of conduct to integrate with its key policies, including its Modemn
Slavery and Human Trafficking (MSHT) strategy. ' .

Communlty and environment

The board is conscious that the business should have a low impact on the environment in which it operates, pcrhculorly in terms of energy )
consumption and business fravel. As an organisation, we take climate change seriously. Our envrronmerrtcl strategy aims to reduce the Group's
carbon footprint and follows industry best practice on environmental, social and governance (‘ESG'} principles.

The Group's operations, being services, are inherently less damaging to the environment than other business sectors. However, the board recognises
that the business must minimise its impact on the environment and utilises recommendations from the Carbon Trust to reduce the organisation's
carbon footprint. Where possible, the Group leases office space in buildings with 1ISO 14001 accreditation. A current focus areais IT, where increased
virtudlisation of servers and systems lowers energy consumption. The Covid- 19 pandemic has provided a unique opportumty to reduce our business
travel activities and reconsider travel requrremenis asa pori of our environmental sustainability goals. .

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Strategic Report continued

Energy and carbon reporting and actions : .
The Covid-19 pandemic has'led to an increase in the pace of Group's property rationalisation project. The properiy portfolio reduction is expected to

have asignificant impact on the Group's carbon footprint, supporting the Group in meehng its environmental objectives. The decision to

permanently move to a flexible working model means that the volume of business travel, printing and staff commuting will not return to pre-pandemic

levels. Travel policies are under continued review, priortising low carbon travel options and reducing business travel further where possible.

To support flexible working and to reduce its technology carbon footprint, the Group began a capital investment project in 2019 to decommission
physicat server infrastructure and migrate to the cloud. Over 50% of the decommissioning process is now complete with 56 servers decommissioned in
the last year. The Group is deploying measures to reduce printing across its office Iocqhons recycling paper and replacing end of Ilfe bulbs with fow
energy bulbs in office spaces.

The Group is in the process of initiating supplier reviews against an environmentally focused procurement framework. The framework prioritises suppliers
that share its commitment to reducing their carbon footprint and managing their environmental impact.

.

Emissions and energy usage- : Emissions source 2021
Scope 1 (kgCO.e) . - Operation of facilities _ ' -
Combustion : " . 43910
Total Scope 1 (kgCO,e) ) : ) : 43,910
Scope 2 (kgCO,e) " Electricity ' a 66,440
Scope 2 (kgCO,e) Indirect energy T ‘ 25,190
Total kgCO,e . C 135,540
Total energy usage (kWh) . 633,136
. 411

kgCO,e per employee

Principal risks and uncertainties
There are cen‘oln risks and uncertainties inherent in the Group 1hot may affect future performance, these are descnbed below:

Legal and regulatory

The Group works in a number of geographic jurisdictions on a daily basis under a variety of laws and regulations. The Group mitigates this risk through
comprehensive compliance policies and procedures including engaging with local advisers and regulators where necessary.

Financial

All potential areas of financial risk are regularly monitored and reviewed by the directors. Where necesscryvpreventcziive and/or corrective measures
are taken to reduce such risk. The company operates in a number of foreign markets, the existence of which exposes the company to a number of
financial risks. These risks are addressed in note 4 of the financial statements. Risks associated with Covid-19 are separately discussed below.

AOperah"onaI ' '

The Group s reliant onits ob|lny to fulfil client demand while recrumng training and developing high quality talent to maintain and expand'its growth
strategy. The directors ochvely engage in providing a structure of sustainable career developmeni for employees.

The Group continues to diversify its operations and utilises its positioning in key sectors across a broad geographic footprint to protect against lower
vccndldcte availability in more mature markets. .

-

Where possible the diréétors mitigate operotionol risks through the use of insurance policies.

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd . ) Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Strategic Report continued
Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Political .

The political environment surrounding Brexit and the UK's departure on 31 December 2020 from the EU has increased the risk of a negative impact to
- the trading performance in our UK businesses, as clients become more ccuhous in headcount investment.

The Group continues to monitor the impact of Brexit and assess mlhgohon of risks in the UK with opportunities in Conﬂnentcﬂ Europe

Covid-19

The impact of Covid-19 on our Group was unqueshonoble having impacted all parts of the Group te greater or lesser degrees. Our way of work

fundamentally changed and demand for our services was impacted in both positive and negative ways. Against this unprecedented backdrop, the

Group delivered robust financial results, demonstrating the resilience and adaptability of our business model as we confinued to effectively engage
- with clients, candidates and colleagues throughout the global pandemic. - ' .

‘As lockdown measures were infroduced around the world, the Group quickly adapted to WOrking from home, maintaining regular communication
with colleagues and clients to maintain operationatl copacity while imptementing measures to enable safe return to work as lockdown measures ease.

Throughout the pandemic, we have focussed on colleague wellbeing through increased communication and a number of engogemeht initiatives

such as the launch of our wellbeing hub. Additional training and equjpment were provided to support our collagues while regular pulse surveys and

town hall meetings helped to ensure we stayed connected and provided the support required to enable new ways of working from home and the
"office.

Equally we have remained closely connected to our chents supporhng them with advice, soluhons and resourcung as they adapt to new woys of
working. .

During the year the.Gro’up_'took advantage of job retention schemes launched by national governments whereby o portion of salaries were
reimbursed for furloughed staff. The total benefit for the year amounted to £0.9m and has been included in other income.

Subsequent events

The Group has completed its subsequent events evaluation for the period subsequent to-the balance sheet date of 31 January 2021, through to the
date of signing the the financial statements and concluded that there are no adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent events requiring disclosure.

Future outiook

While greater unceriainty still exists due to the global pandemic, the Group’s strategy leaves it well placed to continue miaking progress, delivering
further value to investors and stakeholders through continued focus on fhe technology market, our broad portfolio of services and the geogrophlc
diversity of the Group.

Chris Tilley' Date: 26 May 2021

Director

Harvey Nash.Group Holdings Ltd . . . Annual Report & Accounts 2021



Governance-
Annual Report and Financial Statements
Directors’ Report

06 «

Directors' Report-

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021.

The Group has chosen to prepare their financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS).

Directors

The directors holding office af the date of this report:

Bev White : Gary Browning Adrian Gunn ~ Joanna Macleod
Chris Tilley Michael Haxby ‘Diederik Vos '
Michael Branigan David Morrison- Sireisan Bevan

The below changes to the directors occurred during the period:

Bev White Appointed 03 February 2020 ) Sean West - Resigned 29 April 2021
Sireisan Bevan . Appointed 01 May 2021
Joanna Macleod Appointed 01 May 2021

. Subsidiaries outside the United ngdom

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021, the Group had entities established for corporohor\ tcx purposes in a number of countries. A full Ilsl of
subsidiaries and locotions are set out on page 52 & 53.

Future developments ] )
Detdils of future developments can be found in the strategic report and form part of this report by cross-reference.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. Detolls of the Group's objectives and
policies in response to these risks can be found within note 4 to fhe financial sfctemenis

Gomg concern

The directors have considered the current and forecast levels of trcdmg taking into account the cash and invoice discounting facilities expected to
be available to the Group, and have concluded that the going concern basis of preparation remains appropriate. '

In coming to their conclusion, the directors have considered trading and cash flow performance since the start of the global pandemic and for the
. coming period. While the pandemic has undoubtedly impacted financial performance, the Group demonsirated it's resilience and ability to trade
profitably through the pandemic with considered management actions to reduce costs and maintaining strong working capital managment.
Although we firmly believe we are beyond the point of peak disruption, given the continued unceriainty from the global pandemic, stress test
scenarios have been modelled representing the potential impact of a second pandemic downturn.

A downturn scenario has considered double digit reduction in gross profit and operating profit levels below prior year and less than half of expected
levels despite sfrong growth in the quarter to 30 April 2021. In this worst case scenario, we would still maintain odequate cash headroom and remain
within the timits of our banking arrangements. In addition, this scenario does not include costs actions which could be taken to further improve ccsh
headroom such as hecdcount reductions, reduced working hours, and reductions in capital and discrefionary expenditure.

Furthermore in the expected scenario of continued increases in"business activity, working ccpltcl requuemenfs would rise but remain within the
permitted levels afforded by our £20m invoice discounting facility.

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Lid o . ‘ ) AnnuoIARepoﬁ & Accounts
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Directors’ Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Directors' report  continued

Directors’ arrd third party indemnity provisions

The Group has maintained throughout the period drrectors and officers' liability insurance for the benefit of the Group the directors and its officers.
The Group has entered into qualifying third party indemnity arrangements for the benefit of allits directors in a form and scope which complies with
the requirements of the Compcnres Act 2006. These orrcngemenis were | in force throughout the period and remain in force at the date of these
financial statements. -

Drvrdends
During the period dividends were declared ond paid to the value of £0.6m (2020: £1.1m). No dividends hcrve been proposed post- perrod end.

Share capital - )
Durlng the period there were chonges to the issued share copnol of Ihe Group. These are set out in note 22 of the ﬁnoncrol statements.

Auditor and disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director ot the date of approval of this report confirms that:

o sofarasthe Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information {os defined by section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of whrch the Group's
auditor is unaware; and .

o the Director has taken all the steps.that he/she ought to have taken as a Directorin order fo moke hlmself/herself aware of any relevcnt audit
information and to esiablish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The auditor, Deloitte LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved and signed on behalf of the board:

Chris Tilley ’ Dote: 26 May 2021

Director

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd ’ ’ : Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Statement of Dlrecfors Respon5|b|||i|es in Respeci of
the Annual Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Directors' Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulafions.

Company law reduires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under that law the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards
(*IFRSs') as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and they have also chosen to prepare the parent Company financial
statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard {*FRS’) 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the Directors must not cpprove the financial statements unless they are schsﬁed that they give a Irue and fair wew of the state of
offairs of the Compony and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. . .

In preparing the porent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them.consistently;
- :moke judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
T - state whether FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and S ’
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern bésis unless it is inopprvl)priéte to presume that the Company will continue in business.

in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, international Accounting Standard 1 requifés that Directors:
~ properly select and apply accouniing policies; : : . . ' ’ »
_ ~ present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides reIevdnt, reliable, comparable and understandable information;
information; . .
- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable usérs to .
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance; and ' ' '

- make an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements compty
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the csseis of the Compony and hence for tcklng reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website.
Legistation in the United Kingdom gaveming the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions, -

7
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'Independen’r aUdiior’s report to the members of
Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinioh )
In our opinion the financial statements of Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited {the ‘porént company'} and its subsidiaries {the ‘group’):

o give atrue and fair view of the state of the group's and of the pcrent company's offairs ¢s at 31 Jcnuory 2021 ond of the group's profit for the year
then ended;

o the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Siondords (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB)

o the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework™; and "

o have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

‘We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
o the consolidated statement of profit and loss;
A. the consoilidcfed statement of other comprehensive income;

e the consqlidoted and parent company statement of financial position;
o the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity:
o the consolidated cash flow stotement
o the reloted consolidated notes 1 to 32; and
o the reloted parent company notes 1 to 6.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Interndtional Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards ore further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the, UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's(the 'FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these réquirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and cppropnote to provide a basis for our
opinion. .

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial siatements, we have concluded that the directors’ 'use of the'going concerm basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have'not identified any material uncencinfies relating to events or conditions thot, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financiol statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibiliﬁes and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
[}

Other mformuhon

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than ihe financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, except o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur-responsibility is to read the otherinformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

‘Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd . ) ' Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Report on the audit of the financial statements  confinved

Responsibilities of directors ]

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the prepdrdtion of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend.to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the ﬁnuncml statements

Our objectives are to obtoun reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whelher
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

- guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the oggregote they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on fhe FRC's webs:fe at:
www.frc.org. uk/cudltorsresponsnbnlmes This description forms part of our auditor's report.

- Extentto which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud }
Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities,
outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting iregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group's documentation of their policies and
procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of mcnogement about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an undérstonding of the legal and reguloiory frameworks that the group operates in, and identified the key laws and regulations that:

¢ had a direct effect on the determination of motenol amounts and disclosures in the financial sfotements These included; the UK Companies Act,
relevant tax legislotion; and

do not have a direct effect on the ﬁncncml statements but compliance with which may. be fundcmeniol to the group's ability to operate or to
avoid a material penalty.

" We discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant internal specidlists such as tox,
valuations, and IT regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occurin
the financial statements. -

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our specific procedures performed to
address them are described below: )
the risk that any impairment review in relation to goodwill balances has not been carried out appropriately: to address this risk, independent
e valuations experts have analysed inputs to the goodwill model and discount rates, management assumptions and forecasts have been critically
' evaluated and challenged to assess reasonableness, mathematical accuracy of management's model has been tested, and sensitivity analysis
has been performed including recalculation of headrooms .
the risk that revenue amounts have been recorded inaccurately or recognised in the wrong period (resulting in a misstatement of the accrued
® revenue balance): the reconciliation between revenue accrued for, and timesheets subbsequently submitted which relate to the current repomng
period was obiomed and vouched on a sample basis

in common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management overiide of
controls. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evolucned the business
rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business. .

Harvey Nt‘:sh.Group Holdings Ltd * Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Annual Report and FinoncicI'Siqtemenfs
Independent auditor’s report , . .

Indepéndént auditor’s report to the members of
Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Report on the audit of jhe financial statements  continved *

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

o _reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant lows and
regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to
fraud;

enquinng of monogement and externol legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and clcvms and instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulcmons and

e reading minutes of meetings of those chcrged with governance.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters-prescribed by the Companies Act2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for whnch the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements; and .

° the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepored in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
In the light of the knowledge and undersicndmg of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the oudn
we hove not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to.report in respect of the foliowing matters if, in our 6pinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
" branches not visited by us; or

o the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
o cerlain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

Thisreport is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Peter Saunders (Senior statutory duditor]
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP '
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom ]

Date: 26 Moy 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss :
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

Consolldated Statement of Proﬂi cmd Loss

For the 12 month period ended 31 Jonuory 2021

12 month 15 month ;

period ended perlod ended

. 31 January 31 January

. 2021 ) 2020

Notes’ . £000 £'000

Revenue 566,647 760,485
Cost of sales _ (470,797) © - (626,053)
Gross profit _ ' . ' S 6 95,850 . 134,432
Otherincome . 11 1,551 94
Administrative expenses ' ' (87.351) - (121,953)
Operating profit before exceptional items 10,050 12,573
Exceptional items . le (5.372) (11,250)
Operating profit ’ ) 4,678 ] 1,323
Finance costs . i ‘ 7 (1,938) (3.071)
Exceptional finance costs . A ' 10 (219) (1.170)
Profit / (loss) before tax ' - ' " 2,523 © (2.918)
Income tax credit / (charge) ' o . 13 1,785 (5.075)
" Profit / (loss) for the period ) ’ - : © 4,308 (7,993)

Consolidated Statement of Other
‘Comprehensive Income

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021 . 12 month 15 month
- | | P damuary P ey

2021 2020

£000 £'000
Profit / (loss) for the period 4308 . (7,993)-
Foreign chrency translation differences (922) (2,034)
.Gain on fair value of investments - : 11,918
Gain on fair value of contingent consideration - ‘ 629
Other comprehensive income for the perod ' ' . ’ {922) ) 10,513
Total comprehensive profit for the period attributable to owners of the Company 3,386 2,520

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd ’ : ' Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Company Number: 11464274 ’

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 January 2021 . ' ' ) .

31 Januvary 2021 31 January 2020

Notes © £ 000 . £000
ASSETS ' ’
Non-current assets
Infangible assets : . 15 136,304 111,622
Pfoperfy, plont and equipment - . ) 16 5.818 5,715
Right-of-use assefs ' o . 17 9,615 10,756
Loans receivable from group undertakings 25 : _ 845 845
Loan receivable : : , 3] 1,934 1,934
© 154,516 130,872
Current assets . v 4 . .
Trode and other receivables y . 18" 154,890 173.357
Cash and cash equivalents : . ‘19 . 21,68;1 © 17,655
. : ’ 176,574 191,012
Total assets - ] 331,090 321,884
LIABILITIES ' ‘
Current liabilities : .
Trade and other payables . ] 20 (149.8695) (7157,282)
Current income tax liabilities ' 13 (1,322 {598)
Borrowings . 29 {33,799 (52.966)
Short-term lease liabilities 17 (6.164) " (6.640)
Deferred consideration ' 30 (7,190) (175)
Provisions - 21 ) .- {304)
' (198,340) (217,965) -
Non-current liabilities . )
Borrowings T . ‘ ' % - (27.580) _ {15.800)
Long-termi lease liabilities ' . 17 (3.743) (4.227)
'Locnbs payable to. group undertakings. - . 25 (‘?1?) (344)
Deferred consideration ) 30 (6.644) - . (512)
Deferred tax liabilities - - 13° (8.855) ' (10.844)
' (47,734) (31,727)
Total liabilities : . ’ (246,074) : (249.692)
Net assets : ' o - 85,016 72,192
" EQUITY '
Ordinary shares = . ) . | 1
* Share premium _ . 22 . 10,000 .
Fair value and other noq-disfribuioble reserves ’ .23 . 15380 15,380
" Other distributable reserves ' ) 23 . 67,969 , " 67.965
Cumulative translation reserve 23 (2.956) (2,034)
Retained earnings . ’ . 24° (5.378) (9.124)
Total equity : ) : : : 85,016 72,192

The consolidated financial statements on pages 12 - 47 were approved by the board and signed on ifs behalf by Chis Tilley on 26 May 2021.

Chiris Tilley & <« ‘

Harvey Nash Group Ho'ldlngs' Ltd . ’ : Annual Report & Accounts = 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity '

Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 12 month period ended 31 Jonuory 2021

Fair value
and other i
. non- Other Cumulative

o S0 S e oioer | ores 1y

£ 000 £'000 £000 - £'000 £' 000 £' 000 . £000

Balance at 1 November 2018 . - - . .- ) - - -

Loss for the period - - - . - (7.993) (7.993)

Currency franslation adjustments 4 .- - - - (2.034) - (2,034)

Gain on fair vdlue of investments . ' . - - 11.918 - - . - 11,§18

Gain on fair value of contingent consideration : - - 629 - - - 629

Total comprehensive income for the period ' - - 12,547 5L (2,034) (7.993) 2,520

Shares issued during the period ‘ 63,323 3324 - I - - 66,647

Share reduction during the period (63322)  (3.324) C L 66,646 - - .-
 Capital contribution adjustments - - 2833 1323 - - 4156

Dividends paid : o i - - - - - (1.131) (1,131)

Balance at 31 January 2020 - : : ] 1 - 15,380 67,969 (2,034) (9.124) 72,192

Profit for the period : - . - . - 4,309 4,309
Currency franslation adjustments . . ‘ - - - - (922) - (922)

Total comprehensive income for the period .- - - - T (922) 4,309 3.386

Shares issued during the period’ . . - 10,000 - . - - - . 10.000

Dividends paid A - - - - - (562) (562)

Balance at 31 January 2021 - 1 10,000 15,380 67,969 (2,956)‘ (5.378) 85,016

L > .
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

12 month period:

15 month period -

ended 31 ended 31 .
January 2021 January 2020
Notes - £' 000 £'000
Profit / (loss) before tax 2,523 (2.918)
Adjustments for: e
- depreciation 16 7.154 7.544
.- amortisation 15 6,079 7,085
- loss on disposal of property, pltant and equipment 16 - 6
- finance income : SO 1 (76) (90)
" finance cosfs - 7 1,936 3,071
- exceptional finance costs . 10 219 1.170
‘Operating cash flows before changes in working capital 17,835 15,838
* Changesin wérking capital:
- decrease in trade and other receivables 18 - 29.866 20.‘519
- decrease in trade ond other payables 20 (3.152)° (20.,299) '
-'decrease in provisions 21 . (304) (121)
Cash flows from operating activities ’ - 44,245 16,337
Income tax paid 13 (2.437) (4.594)
Net cash generated from operating activities 41,808 11,743
Cash flows from investing activities _ .
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 16 (2,361} (4.660)
Interest received v 1 76 90
Acquisition of subsidiary 32 (16,1035) (16,064)
Cash acquired in acquisition of subsidiary 32 1,186 ‘ 16.836
Net cash used in investing activities (17.204) (3,798)
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease capital repayments - 17 (5.147) '(5,864)
Loans given to group undertakings 25 - (844)
Proceeds from group undertakings 25 568 500,
Interest paid ) -7 (1,539) {2.565)
Exceptional finance costs 10 '(21 9) (1.170)
Proceeds from share issue 22 10,000 -
- Payment of deferred consideration 30 {194) {3.000)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings .29 5.769 20,000
" Repayment of long-term bérrowings . .294 (1;917) (2,109)
{Decrease) / increase in short-term borrowings 29 (27.445) 5,056
"Net cash used in financing activities (20.124) 10,013
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,480 17,958
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17,655 -
. Exchange movements on cash and cash equivalents (451) (303)
21,684 17,655

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Fincncic_l Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staiements

For the 12 monfh penod ended 31 January 2021

1. General information
Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd (‘the Company’) cnd its SUbSIdIOneS (together ‘the Group') is a leading provider of specnohsi recrunmeni and--
outsourcmg solutions. The Group has offices in the United Kingdom; Europe, the United States and Asia Pacific. :

The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Its registered address
is 110 Bishopsgate, London EC2N 4AY

For the period ended 31 January 2021 the following subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to exemption from audit under s479A of the Companies
Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies. As parent the Group has provided a guarantee undertaking under s479C. ’

NashTech Limited ' .(Company Number 09834873)

Impact Executives Holdings Limited (Company Number 03566935)

Horvey Nash Group Ltd . . (Compdny Number 03320790)

1.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs")‘
Thé financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial
statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements hové been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
measured af revalued amounts-or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements of the parent Company are prepared under Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS') 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

The Company has adopted the requirements of The Companies, Partnerships, and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015.

2. Adoption of new and'revised standards )
The Group has considered the following new standards, interpretations and amendments to pubhshed standards that are effective for the Group for \
the financial period beginning 1 February 2020 and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Group or that they would not have a
significant effect on the Group's financial siotements other than disclosures:

Standard L Descripﬁon C A Effective Date
'giﬂg RS NAST2IAS | Annual improvements fo IFRS Standrds 2015-2017 Cycle : " 1 Januory 2019
IAS 19 Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments or settleme}lts 1 January 2019
IAS 28 "|investments in associates and joint ventures (cmendmentsi ' B 1 January 2019
‘IFRS 23 ) Uncertainty overincome tax treatments ' 1 January 2019
IFRS ¢ Amendments regarding prepayment féoiures : . . 1 J‘onucry 2019
IFRS 3 . Business combxnohons (amendments) ) ’ o . g January 2020 .
IAS 1 and 1AS 8 Financial instruments (amendments), definition of material 1 January 2020 .
IFRS 7 & IFRS 9, IAS 39 Amendments regarding pre-replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform k 1 January 2620
IFRS 16 Amendment to provide !‘essees with oq faxerppﬁon from c§sessing whether a COVID-19- ) June‘2020
related rent concession is a lease modification

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Lid i . Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Sfctemenfs
. continued

Notes to the Consolldated Fmancml Siaiements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

2. Adoption of new and revised standards = confinued

The following new stcndords interpretations and omendmems fo pubhshed standards and mierpretohons which are relevant to the Group hove

been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 February 2020 and have not been adopted early.

These standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards and interpretations are not expected to have a material effect on the
Group's financial statements:

Standard Description -Effective Date
IFRS 3 i . Business combinations {amendments) 1 January 2020
IlFfsl:é Igss 7.IFRS 9. IFRS Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context qf the IBOR reform 1 January 2021
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021
IFRS 16 Amendment o extend the exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19 related rent ‘ 1 April 2021
concession is a lease modification
IFRS 1, IFRS 9 Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards V" January 2022
IFRS 3 ) -|JAmendmenis updcting areference to the Conceptual Framework ] Jonuary 2022
. Amendments prohibiting a company from deduciing from the cost of property, plant
IAS 16 and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is 1 January 2022
preparing the asset for its intended use ’
IAS 37 Amendments regarding lhe cosfs to include when nssessmg whether a contract is 1 January 2022

onerous

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd _ ' _ .
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Notes to the Consolidated. Flncmcml Statemenfs
continved

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

3. Significant accounting pollCles
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial stoiements are set out below.

~(a) Going concern
The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequote
resources to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. The Group have performed
assessments of the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on going concern and the details of these assessments are discussed in the directors report on page
6. Accordmgly the Group continues to cdopf the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements consolidate the results of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up from 01 February 2020 to 31
January 2021 and are-based on the consistent accounting policies disclosed herein.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. All infro-Group assets and liabilities, equity. income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the Group
are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subS|d|0nes to bring the accounting policies used lnto line with the Group's
accounting policies.

(c) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated os the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group fo the .
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the ocqurree Acquisition-related costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the hobxlmes assumed are recognlsed at their fair value at the ocquusmon date, except
that:

o deferred tax cssets or liabilities and osseis or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognlsed and measured in accordance
with IAS 12 and 1AS 19 respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment arangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 af the acquisition _dote; and

o Gssets {or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree [if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the ideniifiable ossets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, ofter reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

- assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arangement, the contfingent
considerafion is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes

- in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisifion date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit or toss. "

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests (including joint operations) in the acquired entity are
remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or toss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. where
such treoiment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of. .

If the initial accounting for a business combination.is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or licbilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affectéd the amounts recognised as of that date. -

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd ’ ’ ' Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Siaiemenis

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

3. Significant accounting policies . continued

(d) Goodwill
Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwillis allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwili has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If an impairment is
required the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then io the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on 1he basis of the carrying amount.of each asset in the unit. Animpairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent

period.
On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwillis included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(e) Revenue recogniﬁon
.Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the supply of services, net of value added tax, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue arising from permanent placemenis is recognised on acceptance of the candidate or on start date, subject to the contractual agreement.
Provision is made for.the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual period.

Executive recruitment and assignment fees are recognised as services are provided, 1ybicolly in two stages: shortlist and placement fee under new
revenue recognition accounting standard IFRS 15. Provision is made for the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the
specified contractual period.

The Group derives its revenue in the contract services and interim businesses on a fime and materials basis. It is recognised as services are rendered as
validated by receipt of a client-approved timesheet or equivalent. Where the Group is acting as a principal, turnover represents amounts billed for the
services, inclusive of the remuneration costs of the workers.

For fixed price development work, revenue is recognised on the peréenioge completion basis, using pre-specified milestones or a client sign-off to
tfrigger revenue recognition ond the estimate of profit. Revenue from business process outsourcing is recognised as services are rendered basedona
fime and materials basis. .

. Revenue anticipated, but not |nv01ced at the balance sheet dote is accrued on the balance sheet as accrued income. Revenue invoiced but not
earned at the balance sheet date is recorded as a liobility os deferred income.

(e)(i) IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 from 1 November 2018. IFRS 15 introduces a five-step approach in measuring and recognising revenue from confracts
and replaces IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and related interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains conirol of the goods or
services.

The Group continuously monitors and performs a detailed review of contracts, to determine the timing of the transfer of control in each of its service
lines.

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group derives a significant proportion of its revenue from the provision of temporary workers fo clients. Whether the full invoiced amount is
recognised gross (inclusive of the costs of the temporary workers), or net (exclusive of costs of the workers) depends on whether the Group acts as
principal or agent. IFRS 15 moves away from the ‘risks and rewards' concept of revenue recognition used by IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ fo a concept of
‘transfer of control'. Its core principle is whether the good or service is controlled by the entity prior to delivery to the client. For the purposes of
determining whether an entity acts as an agent or principal, IFRS 15 provides indicators of where control may exist. Sugnmccntly these indicators do
not include credit risk as an mdlccnor that an entity is acting as a pnncxpcl

Temporary contractors

+ Where Harvey Nash has the primary responsibility to deliver and fulfil the promise to provide contractors to the client, this indicates that the entity
controls the service before it is transferred to the client. This includes the acceptability of the service meeting the client's specifications. The Group is
acting as principal. Revenue recognised is the gross amount billed to the client for the services of the temporary workers. This includes revenues from
the placement of temporary contractors where Harvey Nash has a contract management services.contract with the client. Revenue recognition
therefore remains consistent with the current policy under IAS 18.

Contract management services - temporary contractors arranged by third party agencies

Harvey Nash acts as an agent when its primary responsibility is fo provide administrative support to clients, acting as an intermediary between two
parties. Harvey Nash does not control the service provided to the client as the primary responsibility to deliver the services to the client sits with a third
party agency. Revenue is recognised as the commission only {exclusive of costs of the worker) and not gross as under 1AS 18. There is no impact on
cash flow or on gross profit, as there is an equal and opposite decrease to cost of sales.
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continued”

'Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month penod ended 31 Jonuory 2021

3. Significant accounting policies continued

(e)(i) IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ continued

Revenue earned on a retained basis

Revenue for permanent executive recruitment and assignment fees is based on o percentage of o candidate’s remuneration package, recognised
over fime as the services are provided. Under 1AS 18, an up-front retainer fee was recognised. Under IFRS 15 recruitment and assignment fees are

. considered as one performance obligation, delivered over time. When revenue is recognised over time, it is necessary to determine the enfity's
performance towards satisfaction of the performance obligation. Revenue can therefore not be recognised until the entity has performed a service
that will take it closer to fulfiling the performance obligation. This resulted in the deferral of revenue to later stages of the contract. The Group has
quantified the potential impact of this adjusiment and concluded that it is immaterial.

Commissions

Under IAS 18, incremental costs incurred in obtaining a controct {such as sales comm|5510ns) are expensed as incurred. However, under IFRS 15, these
costs are recognised as an asset and amortised over the life of the contract if they are expected to be recovered from the client, Given the short-term
nature of the Group's coniracts, the Group elected to take the practical expedient offered under IFRS 15 for contrccts less than 12 months, allowing
commissions to be expensed as incurred. .

The Group has performed a detdiled analysis of the impdct of IFRS 15, and provided this below:

-Pre IFRS 15 IFRS 15 impact ' Post IFRS 15 A
12 month period ended 31 January 2021 . £000 : 5000' . £000
Revenue : 1.017.388 450,741 566,647
Cost of sales 4 ' (921,538) (450,741) (470,797)
Gross profit - 95,850 - 95,850
15 month period ended 31 January 2020 . . £000 £000 £000
Revenue , 1,364,772 604,287 . 760,485
Cost of sales o ' : . (1,230.340) (604,287) *  (626,053)
Gross profit i o ) 134,432 C - 134,432

(f) Investments .
Investments in associated undertakings {*associated companies’) are stated at the omount of the Group's share of net assets.

(g) Property, blont and equipment )
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less cccumuloted depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so os to wnte off the cost or voluohon of assets less their residual values over their usefut lives, usmg the straight-line method,
-on the following bases:

Leasehold improvements term of the lease .

Futniture, fixtures and equipment - ‘ 5Years

Office equipment 5 Years ' . '
Computer equipment © 3-10Years . ’

Motor vehicles ‘ 25% reducing balance

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The gain or loss on disposal or refirement of an item of. property, plant or equipment is determmed as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the canrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment purchased 1o deliver outsourcing projects, which have been recharged to clients at cost, remain the legal properiy of
the Group. The cost of the asset is capitalised within current assets and charged to cost of sales over the contract length.
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continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

,3. Significant accounting policies  continved

(h) Leases

This note sets out the Group's IERS 16 accounting policy, IFRS 16 transitional dlsclosures and the impact of IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ on the Group's 31 Jonucry
2021 financial position and financial performance. :

IFRS 16

The Group applies IFRS 16 Lecses {as |ssued by the IASB in January 2016).

IFRS 16 introduced new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduced significant changes to the lessee accounting by
removing the distinction between operohng and finance lease requirements and requires the recognition of a right-of-use ‘asset-and a lease liability at
commencement for all.leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast o tessee accounting, the requirements for lessor
accounting have remained largely unchanged. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Gioup's consolidated financial statements is described
below. .

The Group elected to adopt IFRS 16 ‘Leases’, applied from.1 November 2018, using the modified retrospective approach, under which-ihe right-of use
asset is measured atthe same amount as lease liability on the date of initial application (1 November 2018). adjusted only for any prepaid or accrued
lease payments recognised in balance sheet on that date under IAS 17 'Leases’.

Right-of-use assets are inifially measured at cost, comprising the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any initiat direct costs and an estimate of
asset retirement obligations, less any lease incentives. Subsequently, right-of-use assets are measured ot cost, less any accumulated depreciation and

- any accumulated rmpclrment Iosses and are adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lecse ||ob|I|ty Depreciationis calculated on a straight-line
basis over the length of the lease.

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient ovorloble on fransition to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a Iecse
Accordingly, the definition of a lease in cccordcnce with |AS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to those leases entered by subsidiaries before
1 November 2018. . .

The change in definition of a lease mainly relotes to the concepf of control. IFRS 16 deiermines whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of
whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered into or modified on or ofter 1
November 2018 (whether itis a lessor or alessee in the lease contract).

Impact on lease accounting

Operating leases .
I’FRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17.

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the Group:

a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position, initially measured af the
present value of future lease payments;

b) Recognrses depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on Iecse liabilities in the consohdated income statement; and

Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within fmoncnng activities) and interest {presented
within operating ochvmes) in the consolidated income statement.

C

Lease incentives (e g. free rent penod) are recognised as part of the measurement of the nght-of-use assets and lease liabilities wheréas under IAS 17
they resulted in the recognition of alecse incentive liability, amortised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis. -

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in occordonce with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets This replaces thé previous requnrement o
recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts. . .

Forshort-term leases (lease term of less than 12 months) and leases of low-value assets (such as personol computers and office furniture), the Group
has opted to recognise alease expense on a straight-ine basis as permitted by IFRS 16. This expense is presented within other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
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3. Significant accounting policies  continued
IFRS 16 'Leases’ ) " confinued

impuct on Lessee Accounting

Finance leases

The main difference between IFRS 16 and IAS 17 with respect to assets formery held under a finance lease is the measurement of residual value
guarantees provided by a lessee to alessor. IFRS 16 requires that the Group recognises as part of its lease liability only the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as requ:red by IAS 17. This change did not have a matenal
effect on the Group's consolidated ﬁnonool statements.

~ 12month " 15month

period ended period ended

31 January 31 January

Financial impact of the application of IFRS 14 . 2021 2020
Impact on profit or loss’ : . o ‘ ’ £000 . £' 000
Increase in depreciation of right of use asset ' 4,959 5,474
Increase in finance costs : e ' 396 506
Decrease in operating lease expense . . : ’ . (5.147) (5;864)
Foreign exchange movement ) ' (25) ) (5)
Decrease in. profit for the year : . ) ) : ' " 183 : m
Pre IFRS 16 IFRS 16 adjustment Post IFRS 16

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity at 31 January 2020 ' £000 £000 £' 000
nght of use assets . - . 10,756 10,756
‘Net impact on total assets ' ) - . - 10,756 10,756
Lease liabilities A : - ' 10,867 10,867
Net impact on total liabilities . - : " 10,867 10,867
Retained-earnings , Lo - any mmn
Pre IFRS 14 IFRS 14 adjustment Post IFRS 16

Impact on assets, liabilities and equity at 31 January 2021 £'000 ) < £000 £' 000
Right of use assets =~ ° o - 9,615 9.615
Net impact on total assets ' - 9,615 : 9,615
Lease liabilities . - - 9,907 9.907
Net impact on total liabilities . - : 9,907 9,907
Retained earnings , : . i . - \ (183) ’ (183)
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

(i) Foreigﬁ currencies
‘The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates
(its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group company are
. expressed in sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional curency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in foreign curencies are re-translated atthe rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denomingted in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary.items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated. .

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabiliies of the Group's foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, |f
ony are recognised in other comprehensive income and occumuloled in a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in a separate component of equity in respect of that operation
ottributable fo the owners of the Company are reclassified to proﬁt or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and I|ob|I|hes of the forelgn entity and transicted
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(j) Intangible assets
Intangible assets which are acquired separately, or through a business combination, are caried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefu! lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. The Group does not have any assets, other than goodwill, with infinite useful lives. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Development costs are capitalised as an intangible asset if all of the requirements of IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets' are met. The amount initially recognised
forinternally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss.in the
period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,.on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separotely.

As part of the acquisition during the period, the following separately identifiable assets were identified:

Customer relationships * 8-14Years
* Brands 1-10Years
Internally developed software ) 6 Years

(k) Impairment of propéﬁy, plant and equipment and intangible assets
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the
extent of the impairment loss {if any). Animpairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. Assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs-of sale and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rdte that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money andthe risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased 1o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the original carrying value prior to any impairment charges. .
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3. Significant accounting policfes continued

() Financial instruments )
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Group s balance sheet when the Group becomes a parly 1o the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the Group's coniractual rights to the cash flows expire or the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation speoﬁed in the
contractis d|schorged cancelled or expires.

Financial assets

Trade receivables, foans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as
‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for shori-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
For trade receivables. generally this results in recognition at nominal value less any alfowance for doubtful debts.

Financial assets which.are not classified as loans and receivables, but do not meet the held to collect business model and contractual cash flow
criteria as set out in IFRS 9 are classified as *fair value through other comprehensive income' ('FVYOCI'). A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset. Financial assets in this category are classified as curent assets. All
other financial assets that cannot be classified under amortized cost or FYOCI are measured at fair value through profit and loss (*FVTPL').

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either FVTPL or 'other financial liabilities’. A financial liability is classified as FVTPLifitis held for trading or specifically
designated as such to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the profit and loss.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs..Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of @ financial liability and of aflocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that discounts estimaied future cash payments through the expected life of the financid! liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net cqrrymg amount on mmcl recognitfion.

(1)(i) IFRS 9 Implementation .

The Group has applied IFRS ¢ Financial Instruments (as rewsed in July 201 4) and the related consequential cmendments to other IFRS Standards that
are effective for annual periods begining on or after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 9 provides for the following:

a) The classification and measurement of financial ossets and financial |I0bl|lheS
b) Impairment of financial assets; and
c) General hedge accounting. )
Detdils of these new requiremems as well as their impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements are described below.

The Group has cpplied IFRS 9 in’ accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement of financial assets . ]
The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group has assessed its existing financial assets and financial liabilities in terms of the
requirements of IFRS 9) is 1 November 2018. Accordmgly the Group hos applied the requ1rements of IFRS 9 to mstrumenis recognised as at 1 November
2018. .

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be measured subsequently at amortised cost or fair value on the basis
of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow chorocten’stics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that are held to collect the contractual cosh flows, and that have contractual cosh flows that are solely poyments of pnnc«pol and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, ure measured subsequently.at amortised cost;
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

Classification and measurement of financial assets continued .

Debt instruments that are held to collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash floyvs that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI).

All other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable elecfidn/designofion at initial recognition of a financiat asset:

a) The Group may irevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is neither held for frading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination in other comprehensive income; and

b) The Group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured _ct FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

In the current period, the Group has not designated any debt investments that meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured of FVTPL.

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI is derecognised,_the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCl is
defecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is subsequently transferred to retained eamings.

Debt instruments that are measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

The directors of the Group reviewed and assessed the Groub's existing financial assets as at 1 November 2018 based on the facts and circumstances
that existed at that date and concluded that the initial cpphcohon of IFRS 9 has had the following impact on the Group's financiol assets as regards
- their classification and measurement:

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity and loans and receivables under 1AS 39 that were measured at amortised cost confinue o be measured
at amortised cost under IFRS 9 as they are held within a business model to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. ’

None of the other reclassifications of financiat assets have had any impact on the Group's financial position, profit or loss, other é:omprehensive
income or total comprehensive income in the period.

Impairment-of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, rofher than an incurred credlf loss model to be applied. This requires the assessment of the expected
credit loss on each class of financial asset at each reporting date. This assessment should take into consideration any changes in credit risk since the
initial recognition of the financial asset. The main ciass of financial asset held by the Group are trade receivables, which are short-term in nature.

- . ° . N
The directors of the Group have reviewed and assessed existing financial assets using reasonable and supportable information to determine credit risk
and concluded that there is no material financial impact on the Group. \

{m) Share capital .
QOrdinary shares are classified as equity. Where any Group company purchases the Company's equny share capital {own shares), the consideration
paid is deductible from equity attributable to the: Company’'s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares
are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders. .

(n) Tax

. Currenf tax
The tax currently payable is bcsed on taxable profit for the period. Toxoble profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it turther excludes items that are never taxable or deduchble.
The Group's liabiiity for current tax is calculated using tox rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued

(n) Tax continued

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the coresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the inifial recognition of goodwill or from ihe initial recognition (other than in @ business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

- Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associoted with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. ’

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date dnd reduced to the extent thatitis no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is reclised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred taxis charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items chorged or credited in other
comprehensive income, in which case ihe deferred taxis also dealt with in other comprehenswe income.

(o) Dividend distribution .
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dlwdends
are approved by the Company's shoreholders Interim dividends are recognlsed when paid. '

(P) Employee benefits

Pension obligations .

Wherever possible, the Group operates defined contribution permon schemes, under which the Group pays fixed contributions mto separate entities.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay furiher contibutions. Pension costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise. In Belgium and Switzerland. legislation requires the operohon of pension schemes-which contain an element of defined
benefit, the obligations under which are fufly insured and there are no unrecorded liabilifies. Amounts related to these schemes were considered by
the Group to be immaterial during the period thus Group accounted for these as defined contribution schemes.

Share-based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the ophons ot the date of grant is charged to profit or loss over the vesting period.
Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options.ihat eventuclly vest.

. Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair vclue of the options granted. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for the failure to achieve a
market vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also Iokes into account non- vesting conditions. These are either factors beyond the control of either party (such as a target
based on an index) or factors which are within. the control of one or other of the porhes {such as the company keepmg the scheme open or the
employee maintaing any contributions required by the scheme).
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3. Significant accounting policies  coniinued

(P) Employee benefits  continued

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee accepis voluntary
redundancy in exchange for benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminating the employment
of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.

Bonus plan
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged.

Government grants

Government grants are accounted for under the accruals model. A grant that becomes receivable as compensdtion for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised in other income in the period it
becomes receivable. This includes the Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The Group has not benefited from other forms of government
assistance or received grants relating to expenditure on non-current assets.

. (q) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group haos a present obligation (legal or constructive) as aresult of a past event, it is proboble that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, ickmg into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Dlscounhng is opplied only when the effectis mctenol

[(5) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are written off as incurred. Invoice discounting fees are recognised os incurred.

. (s) Workmg caplial facilities
The Group has access to working capital finance facilities prowded by its bankers in the form of a confidential trade recexvobles ﬁnonce facility which
is secured by a floating charge over the Group's assets. The borrowings under. this are included within current liabilities and described as borrowings
on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position and the facility is secured specifically against the Group's trode receivables. Trade
receivables are included within trade receivables in the Group's consolidated stctement of financial posmon

(t) Exceptional items
Exceptional items are significant items considered outside the normal course of business and are presented separately on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit and loss due to their nature and/or size with further information included in the notes to the financial statements. The
separate reporting of such items helps to provide a better indication of the Group s underlying business performance as it enables shareholders to see
the results of the ongoing trading operohons

In the reporting of financial information, the Group uses certain measures that are not required under IFRS. Management considers that these
additional measures (commonly referred to as ‘alternative performance measures’ or 'APMs') provide shareholders with valuable additional
information on the performance of the business. These measures are consistent with those used internally, and-are considered critical to understanding
the financial performance of the Group APMs are dlso used to enhance the comparability of information between reporting periods. by adjusting for
excephoncl or items considered to be distortive to trading performance which may offect IFRS measures, to aid shareholders in understanding the
Group's performance. These APMs are not intended. to be a substitute for, or superior fo, IFRS measures.

+ . .

For this reason, the Group presents a number of alternative performance measures, including: . -
Total billings (prior to IFRS 15) (Page 2) '
Exceptional items (Note 10)
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4. Financial risk management

Financing

The Group's principal financial instruments are overdroffs cash and short-term deposns aninvoice d|scounhng facility and a senior finance debt
syndicated facility. The Group has ofher financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations,
Acquisitions are financed through a mixture of operating cash flow and equity. Working capital finance for day-to-day requirements is provided -
through operating cash generation, invoice discount facilities and small short term overdraft facilities. Where applicable, funds are then made
available for the financing of the Group's subsidiaries through intercompany loans.

Objectives, policies und strcltegles

. The meost significant treasury exposures faced by the Group are raising finance, managing mteres’f roies and-currency posmons Qs well as investing
surplus cash in high-quality assefs. The Board has established clear parameters, including levels of authority, on the type and use of financial
instruments to manage these exposures. Transactions are only undertaken if they relate to underlying exposures and cannot be viewed as speculative.

Capital nsk management

The Group's objectives when managing ccpltol are to safeguard the Group's ability to conhnue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital for the Group. In order to
‘maintain or adjust.the capital structure, the Group may adjust the omount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets toreduce debt. .

12 month 15 month

period ended period ended

31 Janvary 31 January

2021 2020

. . £ 000 . £000

Borrowings ' : ‘ E 61.378 68,766
Total equity . . . : 85,016 72,192
Total funding : ’ i 146,394 : 140,958
Gearing ratio % ' . 4193% . 48.78%

Interest rate risk management
The Group's policy is to minimise interest charges through cash pooling and active cash management.

Market risk and fore?gn exchange risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group's policy is to
minimise foreign currency risk. The Group manages its exposure on equity investments in overseas subsidiaries through foreign currency borrowings.
The currency risk of holding assets and liabilities in foreign currencies across the Group i |s moncged by partially matching forengn currency assets wnh
foreign currency liabilities. :

The Group's operating profit exposure to foreign currency translation is primarily in respect of the US dollar and the Euro.

Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of services are made to customefs with an
" appropriate credit history and historically there are low levels of debt write-off throughout the Group. Trade receivables consist of a large number of

customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to a single customer.
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4. Financial risk management continued

Liquidity nsk . . .

Prudent hqwd!ty risk management implies molntolnlng sufficient cash and committed credit facilities. Management monitors roliing forecasts of the:

Group's liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facility, cash and invoice discounting) on the basis of expected cash flow. All borrowings are
" short term other than the syndicated senior finance facility. The Group's main invoice finance facility was most recently renewed in November 2018.

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty*:
In the application of the Group's accounting policies the Directors are required to make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that
have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make estimates and assumplions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. .

The estimates and underlying assumptions are rewewed on an ongoing basis. Revmons to occounhng estimates are recognlsed in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and fyture periods if the revision affects both curent and
future periods.

~ Critical judgemenis in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The foIIowmg are the critical judgements that the Directors have made in the process of opplymg the Group S occounhng policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Share based payments )
The Group has exercised judgement in determining that the share opfion scheme which is based on the future sale price of the Group by the current
shareholders reflects performance-based remuneration which should pass through the income statement. Management has estimated the value of
the share option scheme at the date of initial grant and will vest the amount through share option charge on the income statement up 1o the
expected exercise date. The exercise date used is also a management estimate.

Purchase price allocation

As part of the acquisition purchase price allocation mcncgement was requnred fo moke various judgements and eshmonons in relation to the values
placed on intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each cash-generating unit. Management utilised various market onolyﬂs and valuation
techniques as well as forward-looking forecosts as at the time of acquisition which are inherently judgemental.

The presentation of selected items as exceptional items
' The Group applies judgement in identifying the significant non-recuring items of income cnd expense that are :ecogmsed as excephonol to help
provide an indication of the Group's underlymg business performance. See note 10 for further details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty -
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reportmg period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill and investments :

Determining whether the carrying value of goodwill or an investment is impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill or investment has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to cdlculate present value. These include forward-looking forecasts which are
inherently judgemental. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 January 2021 was £76.2m. The carrying value of the investment held in the parent
company at 31 January 2021 was £108.6m. The key cssum.pﬁons and sensitivities in the value-in-use calculations are set out in note 15.

6. Segment information
IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ requires disclosure of information about the Group's operating segments. it requires a management approach under
which segment information is presented on'a simitar basis to that used for internal reporting purposes. The chief operating decision maker in the
business has been identified as the Group Board. Services provided by each reportable segment are Leadership Services, Technology Recivitment
and Solutions.

The accounting policie§ of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's occounting policies described in note 3.
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6. Segment information continued . 12 month Als month
The Group Board analyses segmental information as follows: period ended pericd ended
. . o ’ 31 January 31 January
Gross profit . : : 2021 2020
Geographical h . . : £000 . . £'000
United Kingdom & Ireland o I 35,178 50,635
Mainland Europe - . . o . 38,879 54,408
|Benelux o o - 22,605 28137
Nordics ' ‘ ' 10,587 18,353
Ceniral Europe o ' . 5,687 7918 | *
Rest of World : B : , 21,793 29,389
United States . ’ 10,886 . 15,669
Asia Pacific - ' , ‘ 4 B , 10,907 13,720
Total gross profit o _ ' ' 95,850 . 134,432
. Service Line ]
Leadership services ' ) 14,756 24,844
Teqhnology recruitment : 62,848 86,934
Solutions , ' 18,246 2,654
Total gross profit . : T 95.850 134,432
Operating profit and profit before tax
Geographical
United Kingdom & Ireland . o A . 3,866 8,717
Mainland Europe A 8,539. 10,793
Benelux ' : ‘ ' 8,515 © 10,085
Nordics ‘ ' : . (517) 827
Central Europe : ’ 54) (119)
Rest of World o : : 4,196 4,502
United States L 527 816
Asia Pacific ' : o 3.669 3,686
Total o : ' o 16,601 24,012
Service line ) '
Leadership services . (509) 1,454
Technology recruitment ] ¢ . 11,853 . 17,276
solutions : 5257 5282
Total ' ' ‘ v 16,601 24,012
Group and central service costs . (6.551) (11,439)
Total operating profit before exceptional items : ’ 10,050 12,573 .
Excepfional items ] ) . (5.372) (11,250)
Total operating profit_ o 4 4,478 1,323
Finance costs o ‘ . ' (1.936) (3.071)
Exceptional finance costs C . (219) - .(1,170)
Profit/ (loss) before tax o 2,523 T (2,918)

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd ) . . ) Annual Report & Accounts 2021



» 31 °  Financial Statements
‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued '

'Notes to the Consolidated Finahciql Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021 .

7. Finance costs

12 month period

15 month period

ended 31 ended 31
January 2021 January 2020
£ 000 £'000
Net interest on bank borrowings 1,540 2,565
Interest expense on lease liabilities 396 506
’ 1.936 3.071

Finance costs

8. Operating profit

The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit from conlinuing operations:

12 month period

15 month period

ended 31 ended 31
January 2021 January 2020
_ £ 000 ' £ 000
Employee costs - salaries and wages 58,033 78,336
Bad debt provision and debts directly written off 1,030 1,070
. Depreciation of property, plant and équipment 2,196 2,070
Depreciéiion onright of yse ossets 4,959 5,474
Amortisation 6,079 7.055
Operating lease rentals payable 255 1,163
Profit / {loss) on foreign exchange (26) 1.091

6

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equip'meni '

9. Auditor's remuneration

The analysis of the auditor's remuneration is as follows:

.

12 month period -

- 15 month period -

ended 31 ended 31
January 2021 January 2020
7 4 ) £ 000 £ 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's Annual Report 185 141
Fees payable o the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 375 365
Total audit fees ' 560 506
Tox and other services - 9
Total non-audit fees * o - 9
560 515

Total Fees

No services were performed pursuant to contingent fee arangements. There were no other non-audit fees incumed in the current period.
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10. Exceptional items

Exceptional items : 12 month 15 month-
’ ' period ended period ended

31 January . 31 January

. . 2021 . 2020

: g o ' : . . ' £'000 £'000
Acquisition costs S - : ' 2.341 3914
Covid-19 related costs . 561 . : -
Group transformation - . ) 1.601 " 5654
-Optimisation projects : . . 814 . 812
Other o : : 55 870
Total exceptional items ) ' 5372 11,250

Dunng the period, the Group acquired Latitude 36 Inc. The Group mcurred excephonol costs related to the ccqwsmon including professional ‘and
legal fees. These amounted fo £2.3m.

Covid-19 had animpact on the Group during the period resulting in exceptional costs relating to advisory, legal and professional fees, resifucturing
and other related costs. Costs incurred for the period were £0.6m.

The Group also engaged in a number of various transformation projects ranging from the restructuring of relevant divisions, investments in key areas
and redundancies of senior executives. In the month period, £1.6m of exceplional costs related 1o this. .

In the period. a number of projects were initiated with the aim of optimising the group entity structure and mitigating potential compliance risk areas.
The total of the costs to date for the period were £0.8m. .

Other exceptional items amounted to £0.05m for the period.

Exceptional finance costs . ; ’ ) 12 month 15 month
’ period ended period ended

31 January 31 January

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Excepfional finance costs . . : . 219 . 1,170

During the period the Group incurred exceptional costs related to funding the Latitude 36 acquisition. As a result of Covid-19, the Group engaged wnh
its lenders in securing amendments to the senior finance debt fccnhty Costs incurred relating to this cmounied to £0.2m.

12 month 15 month

11. Otherincome

. period ended period ended

31 Janvary . 31 January

2021 2020

£'000 £'000

Interest received ' ' 76 . 90
Job retention furlough scheme 913 ’ -

Other income ) 562 3

" Total other income 1,551 94

As Q result tof Covid-19 during. the period the Group took advantage of govemment job retention schemes whereby a porhon of salaries were

rei mbursed for furloughed staff. The total benefit for the period was £0.9m.
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12. Employees and Directors

Rest of World

Average number of people employed UK & Ireland Europe Total
Executive directors 2 - - * 2
Sales 244 227 40 531

Administrative 124 81 121 326
Employees included within cost of sales - 374 1,545 1,919
Total for the 12 month period-ended 31 January 2021 i 370 682 1,726 2,778
Average number of people emp!oyed UK & Ireland Europé Rest of World Total
Executive directors 3 - - 3
Sales 274 229 102 605
Administrative 118 B/ 110 315
Employees included within cost of sales ) ’ - 431 1,525 1,956
Total for the 15 month period ended ;1 January 2020 395 747 1,737 2,879

No directors or employees were employed by the company during the period.

12 month period 12 month period 12 month pérlod

15 month period 15 month period

15 month period

ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31 ended 31

January 2021 January 2021 January 2021 January 2020 January 2020 January 2020

Cost of Admin " Costot Admin i
Totat Total

sales expenses sales expenses .
Total staff costs for ihe Group £' 000 £'000 £'000 i £' 000 £'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 50,741 50,454 101,195 49,044 67,291_ 116,335
Social security costs 7.232 6.326 13,558 9,271 9,615 18,886
Pension costs 1,920 . 1,253 3.173 2,808 1,430 4,238
Total 59.893 58,033 117,926 61,123 78,336 139,459

12 month period

15 month period

Directors’ emoluments in respect of qudlifying services to the Group were as follows: , ended 31 ended 31

. ' January 2021 January 2020
Directors’ remuneration £'000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments 582 1,954
Pension contributions 65 140 A
Share-based payments 70 -
Termination benefits included in exceptional items . 1,586
Total director's remuneration n7 3,680
Highest paid director ]
Aggregate emoluments ! s 300 ' 878
Pension contributions 39 - 64
Share-based payments . 50 -
Termination benefits included in exceptional items - 766
Total highest paid-director . - 389 1,708
In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, Directors' emoluments above represent the proportion of iot[:l emoluments paid or boyoble in respect
of qualifying services.

- During the period the Directors received no emoluments for non-qualifying services which are required to be disclosed. '
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12 month 15 month
" period ended period ended
13. Tax 31 January 31 January
2021 2020
~ " £000 £ 000
Corporation tax - UK ’ 4 190
Corporation tax - overseas 12,693 2.5%0
Adjustments in r'especfof prior periods 463 286
Total current tax expense 3.160 3.066.
Decrease in deferred tax liability (4,945) 2,009
Total deferred tax (credit) / charge (4,945} 2.009
Total tax (credit) / charge (1,785) 5,075
The tax rate used for the reconciliation above is. the corporate tox rate of 19.00% (2020: 19.00%) which was in effect the entire period.
The difference are explained below for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021 using the UK standard rate of corporation tax:
'  12month 15 month
period ended period ended
31 January 31 January
2021 2020
£ 000 £'000
Profit / (loss) before tax 2,523 (2.918)
Adjustments to profit / {loss) before tax - (1 76)
Tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% 479 (588)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible and other permanent items 568 1,255
Income not taxable {(725) -
Tox losses which are not recoverable - 263
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (1} (26)
Adjustments to current tax in respect of prior year odjusfmerjfs 463 286
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances 244 9
Deferred tax adjustment in respect of prior yecrs {333} 535
Profits taxed at overseas rates (133) (15)
Derecognition of previously recognised deferred tox asset (2.347) 3.356.
Total taxation (1,785) 5,075
Current tax: N
Tax in the period 2,697 2,780
Adjustments in respect of prior periods - 463 - 286
Total current tax : ' 3,160 3,066
Deferred tax: .
Origination and reversal of timing differences (4.856) 1,465
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred ioi bdlcnces 244 9
Prior period adjustment to deferred tax S (333) 535
Total deferred tax (credit) / chcrgé . (4.945) 2,009
(1.785) . 5,075

Total tax (credit) / charge
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13. Tax continued

The Findnce Act 2020 included legislation to maintain the main rate of UK corporation at 19%. rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020. The
change to the mdin rate of corporation tax was substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and therefore included in these financial

. statements. Temporary differences have been remeasured using ?hese enacted tax rates that are expected to apply-when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. .

The UK'Budgei 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included an increase to the UK's main corporation tax rate to 25%, which is due to be effective
from 1 April 2023. These changes were not substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and hence have nof been reflected in the measurement
of deferred tax balances.

12 rﬁonih period 15 month period

ended 31 ) ended 31

) January 2021 Janvary 2020

Deferred tax. £000 - £' 000
Deferred tax liabilities: ] . .

Deferred tax liability to be setfled after more than 12 months (7.311) (9.652)

Deferred tax liability fo be settled within 12 months {1.544) (1.192)

' (8.855) (10.844)

Net deferred tax liability ’ {8.855) (10.844)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tox liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and hcbnlmes ona nei basis. The
table above sets out the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes.

The deferred tax position is analysed below: Accelerated " Accrued
Acquired capital - interest )

intangibles allowances Tax losses charges Other Total
£' 000 £ 000 £' 600 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
01 November 2018 - - - - - ) -
'Acquired in acquisition ' : ) ) (13,101) 22 1.894 1,759 591 ) (8.835)
Movement ) 1,490 (68) (1,283) (1,759) (389) (2.009)
31 January 2020 (11,611) (46) 611 - 202 (10.844)
Acquired in acquisition : (2.750) (2.750)
Movement ' 1,022 ) 938 2,482 . 504 4,945
Foreign exchange o {206) (206)
31 January 2021 : (13,339) (47) 1,549 2,482 500 . (8,855)

- - N
Deferred tax assets arising from dedictible temporary differences are only recognised to the exient thot it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences, and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at fhe tax rates that are expected to obply in the periods in which they are redlised. The rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the UK Government for the relevant periods of reversal are 19% {2020: 17%). The rates enacted by the US Government for
the relevant periods of reversal was 26% from 22 December 2017.

Due fo the unceriainty of recoverability, deferred fax assets in respect of tax losses, depreciation in excess of accelerated capital allowance and
deductible temporary differences of £1.8m (2020: £3.7m) have not been recognised. Future tax charges may be reduced as a result of tax losses for
which a deferred tax asset is currenily not recognised.

Deterred tax on intangible assets relates to a deferred tox liability raised on separately identified intangible assets recognised as part of the acquisition
of the Harvey Nash Group. The balance is released proportionately in line with the amortisation of the underlying intangible assets. £0.9m (2020: £1.5m)
was released during the period. The acquisition of Latitude 36 Inc on 20 October 2020 resulted in an cddmonol deferred tax liability raised on
intangible assets amounting to £2.6m.
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14. Dividends
The dividends paid in the period were £0.6m (2020: £1. 13m) This amounted to 0.77p per share (2020: 1.79p per shore) No dividends were proposed
subsequent to period end.

12 month period - 15 month period

ended 31 ended 31 -
January 2021 January 2020
£' 000 . £000
Dividends declared and paid during the period - - : : ’ 562 ) 1,131
Total . . 562 ° 1,131
15. Intangible assets ’ ) N : . ‘ " Internally
Customer Brand: . Brand: Brand: 8rand: Brand: developed
relationships Harvey Nash Alumni TalentiT Nashtech  Latitude 36 software : Total
g 000 £' 000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Cost ] '
At 01 November 2018 : ' - A - - - - - N A -
Acquisitions . ' 49.300 6,100 1.600 700 1,400 - 1,000 60,100
At 31 Janvary 2020 . 49,300 6,100 1,600 700 1,400 - 1,000 60,100
Acquisitions : : 12,815 : - . - - 281 - 13,096
At 31 January 2021 ' 62,115 - 6,100 1,600 700 1,400 281 1,000 73,196
Accumulated amortisation and impairment . N
A101 November 2018 - ' ; ) R . . ) . ]
Charge fdr the 15 month period 5,621 763 - 200 88 175 - 208 7,05_5
At 31 January 2020 5621 T 763 ©200 88 175 - 208 7,055
Charge for the 12 month period 4,764. . 610 160 70 140 . 168 167 6,079
At 31 January 2021 110,385 1,373 360 158 315 168 378 13,134
Carrying amount ) ) X
At 31 Jonuary 2020 43,679 5,337 1,400 812 1,225 - 792 . 53,045
At 31 January 2021 : 51,729 4,728 1,240 543 1,085 12 625 .60,061
Goodwill A ' ' : . £000
At 01 November 2018 : -
Acquisitions C ‘ . . 58,577
At 31 January 2020 ’ ! 58,577
_ Acquisiions : ’ ’ : . 17,666
At 31 January 2021 : : . ' 76,243
Intangibie assets (induding goodwill)
At 01 November 2018 o . -
At 31 January 2020 : ‘ : 111,622
At 31 January 2021 _ y ' : 136,304
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15. Intangible assets continued

The carrying amounts of goodwill at acquisition and at period end allocated by cosh- ' As at 31 . As at 31

generating unit (CGU') are as follows: . _Jonuary 2021 January 2020
Goodwill ' o ~ £ 000 ) £ 000
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland . . ) .. 30.762 . 30.762
Tech Recruitment - Belgium - ' 11,700 11,700
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands : ' : 7.525 7.525
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe ) ' . 1.803 1,803
Tech Recruitment - USA ' ' ' 17,666 -
Leadership Services - UK & Irelond. - . ) 1,036. 1,036
Leadership Services - Nordics : i : . 1,240 1,240
Solutions - Nashtech ' : o 4,511 4,511

76,243 58,577

.

During the period the goodwill in respect of each CGU was tested forimpairment in accordance with 1AS 36 'Impairment of Assets’. All CGU's were
assessed to have a value-in-use in excess of their respective camying values, thus no impairment adjustments to goodwill were considered necessary. .

The assumptions applied in the impairment review are consistent with those.applied within the Group's long-term strategic plan, approved by
management and the Board. The assumptions are based on latest industry forecasts and the expectations of management given their post
‘experience. The key assumptions in the value-in- use calculations are disclosed below.

Average growth rate in first five Long-term growth rafe

years
Significant cash-generating unit . 2021 2020 2021 2020
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland . : 22.0% 17.1% 0.5% 3.6%
Tech Recruitment - Belgium ‘ 19.7% 25.1% S 09%  26%
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands ’ 21.6% . 240% . 1.4% - 3.2%
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe ’ ) 36.1% (0.3%) . 1.3% 2.8%
Tech Recruitment - USA . - - : ' 19.7% 22.4% 2.5% 4.0%
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland , 42.2% 201% 0.4% 3.4% -
Leadership Services - Nordics ' 30.7% ‘ 33.1% 2.3% 3.4%
Solutions - Nashtech ' ' ) 12.9% 17.4% 2.4% (7.1 %)

The full five year overcge has been utilised for all cash generchng entities . The terminal growrh rote is based on the long- term growth rote for each
country and was on average 1.5% (2020: 3'7) Management believes the forecasts are achievable.

Managemeént has taken the curent economic downturn as a result of Covid-19 into account and haos applied an additional sensitivity percentage to
ensure that Goodwill does not need to be impaired should there be a further downfurn Bosed on the outcome of management analysis the Group
considers the effect of Covid-19 to be a non-adjusting event. '

The pre-tax discount rate used was bqsed on the industry weighted average cost of capital for each country and was on average 20.3% (2020: 20.3%).

The Group has carried out a sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests of each cash generating unit to which goodwill has been dllocated. Based on
this analysis management believes any reasonable changes in the key assumptions used in the impairment model would not result in any material
impairment chcrge being recorded in the financial statements.
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16. Property, plant and equipment . Furniture, _

Leasehold Oftice fixtures and Computer Motor
Improvements  Equipment equipment equipment . vehicles . Total
£ 000 £ 000 £' 000 £000. €' 000 £' 000

Cost ’ ’
At01 November 2018 ' ' _ ] . . o ] )
Additions ’ 943 139 . 245 3.333 - 4,660
Acquisitions . = R . 2,963 602 1,572 9.015 16 14,168
Disposals _ . .  (02) (60) 1) (1L.974) - (2:447)
~.Exchange adjustiments . 95 35 ) 246 356 - 726
At 31 January 2020 : 3,799 716 1,846 10,730 s 17,107
Additions . 109 .63 44 2,145 . - 2,361
Acquisifions , ' o- - 194 - - 194
" Disposals A W 22) 4 (492) - (519)
Exchange adjustments ) (m (38) 8 80 1 40
At 31 January 2021 : , ' 3,896 719 2,088 12,463 17 19,183

Accumulated depreciation )
* At01 November 2018 - - A - ’ - - .

Charge for the year : : 356 68 " 213 1,433 - 2,070
Acquisitions . 2,039 512 1,342 7.322 16 11.231
Disposals o : ' ' (200) (59) (211) {1.970) - (2.440)
Exchange odjustmente ] ' ‘ 58 29 188 256 . - . 531
At 31 January 2020 . 2,253 550 ©1,532 7,041 16 - 11,392
Charge for the year : 485 92 160 1,459 - 2,196
Acquisitions . - - 151 A 23 ' - 174
Disposals : T m (10) (12) (433) - ‘_(456)
Exchonge adjustments : m (10) (10} - 79 ! 59
At 31 January 2021 ) » . 2,736 1622 1,821 8,169 17 13,365

Carrying amount’

At 01 November 2018 ’ . - - - - - ) -
At 31 January 2020 . 1,546 166 . 314 3,689 - - 5715
At 31 January 2021 1,160 97 267 14,294 - 5818

On 01 November 2018 the Group was formed when Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd acquired 100% of Harvey Nash Group Ltd. As a result under IFRS
3: Business combinations the Group acquired ail property plant and equipment as at.that dote.

On 20 October 2020 the Group acquired 100% of Lohtude 36 Inc. As aresult under IFRS 3: Business combinations the Group acquired all property ptant
and equipment as at thot date. . .
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Right of
17. Leases under IFRS16 vse assets
- Property Total
. £000 £ 000
Cost
At 01 November 2018 ’ i . ' : - -
Additions ’ ‘ : o , 5790 . 5790
Acquisitions - ) ‘ : 13,112 13,112
Exchange adjustments ’ ) : : (694) (694)
AT 31 Janvary 2020 . ' ; 18,208 18.208
Additions . . 2,416 2,416
_Acquisifions ' : o : 1,124 1,124
Exchange adjustments ) ) . 293 293
" "At 31 January 2021 I - - 22,041 22,041
Accumulatéd depreciation . '
At 01 November 2018 - - ' - 4 . - -
Charge for the year ‘ o A 5,474 5,474
Acquisifions : T . 2211 - 2,21
Exchange adjustments- . ' (233) (233)
At 31 January 2020 ' : ' 7,452 7.452
" Charge for the year ‘ ' . 4,959 4,959
Acquisitions v 4 - . -
Exchange adjustments . 15 ©16
At 31 January 2021 . i o 12,426 12,426
Carrying amount : .
At01 November 2018 A o ‘ . . -
At 31 January 2020 ' : 10,756 10,756
At 31 January 2021 . ) 9.615 9.615
) i2 month period 15 month period
: . ended 31 ended 31
The carrying amount of the lease liability is as follows: January 2021 . January 2020 -
' S £ 000 £ 000
Lease liability '
Opening Balance : : 10,867 -
Additions ' A : 2388 5,790
Acquisifions ' ' ' IR AT YR 10,901
Lease payments . (5.147) ' (5.864)
Interest incurred ' 396 . 506 -
Exchange adjustments ‘ 4 o 279. (466)
-Closing balance ' 7 . 9,907 10,867
Current. - ' S a 6164 6.640
Non-current : ‘ . ) 3.743 . 4,227

Total ' ' 9.907 10,867
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18. Trade and otherreceivables Asat31 As at 31

’ ’ . ' ' January 2021 January 2020

. £ 000 £ 000

Trade receivables o v 102,658 138,961

Less: Provision for esﬁmoféd credit loss . o o : (1,046) (1.178)
- o ] 101,612 137,783 -

Other receivables o 5 S 2,774 . 312

Prepayments ’ : . ' L2721 2,750

Accrued income ) 47,783 . 32,512

154,890 . 173,357

Debtor days were 41.2 days (2020 42.3 days). Debtor dcys cre calculated by reference fo outstcndlng debtors relohve to amounts invoiced in the
preceding months up to the yeor end. .

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. As of 31 January 2021, trade receivables of £40.5m (2020:
£34.9m) were cged over 30 days but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: .

Asat3l . Asat 31

o ) January 2021 January 2020

- ' A o . £ 000

1-2 months ' - 18945 . 20,436
23months ' ' . 12,496 9179
Over 3 months ) o ’ 9,041 5,270
‘ ' 40,482 34,885

- Asof 31 ‘Jonucry 2021, trade receivables of £1.05m (2020: £1.18m} were impaired and provided for.
The individually impaired receivables mainly relcté 1o customers who are in difficult economic situations. All the impaired receivables are more than

three months overdue. In the current period, the creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been included in ‘administrative
expenses' in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Movements on the Group provision for imboirment of trade receivables are as follows:

Provisions ) . £000
At | November 2018 -

Acquired in acquisition . ; __ . 367
Provision raised ering the period ' . . . 811
At 31 January 2020 : : 1178 -
Acquired in acquisiion . ’ o o o - . 38
Provision raised during the period - (170)
At 31.January 2021 K ‘ . : ‘ 1.046
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18. Trade cmd other receivables continued

) ) Current 30-60 days © 60-90 days 90+ days Total
. . ' ] £' 000 £'000 £' 000 £' 000 £'000

Default rate 0.00% 1.25% 2.50% 5.00%
Gross carrying omouﬁf 61,280 18,945 12,496 9,937 102,658
Lifetime expected credit loss . ’ - (237) (312) (497) (1.046)
61,280 18,708 12,184 9.440 101,612

The Group has applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trdde
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days

past due.

The maoximum exposure to credit risk qf the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable listed above. The Group does not hold any

collateral as security.

. ] As at 31 As at 31

/ ) - January 2021 January 2020

£'000 -£' 000

Sterling 38,488 45,022

Euro 87,702 110.889

US Dollar 18,837 8.815

Other'currencies 9.863 - 8,631

154,890 173.357

1"he directors consider the cbO\;e trade and other receivdble_s to be reflected ot fair value.
19. Cash un:d cash equivalents

Asat 31 Asat3l -

January 2021 January 2020

. £ 000 £'000

Bank balances 21,673 - 17,646

Petty cash 1 , 9
Total ' .21,684 17,655

20. Trade and other payables A S Asat 31 Asa; 3

Janvary 2021 January 2020

' ' £ 000 £ 000

Trade poyables 69,283 87,649

Other tax and social security payable ' 17.025 10,523

Accruals 62.213 57,768

Other payables - 1,344 1,342

’ © 149,865 157,282

- The directors consider the above trade and other payables to be reflected at fair value.

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Lid
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Noies io the Consolldated Fmanc:ml Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 Jonuory 2021

12 month ) 15 month

21. Provisions period ended period ended
31 January 31 January

2021 < 2020

£ 000 £ 000

Opening Balance 304 -
Acquired through acguisition - , 431
Charge in the period - ) 202
Utilised in the period (304) {323)
Foreign exchange movements - (6)
Closing balance - 304
- 304

Current

"Non-current

Provisions in the prior year consisted of £0.2m relating to the closure of Norway and £0.1m relating to an onerous lease in Germany. This lease expired
in July 2020 and dll provisions were utilised within the 12 months ended 31 January 2021. .

22. Share capital . ] As ot 31 Asat 31
v ’ January 2021 January 2020
£ 000 £'000

Allotted and fully poud
73.323,183 {2020: 63.323.183) ordinary shares of 0.001 pence each 1 1

During the period 10,000,000 shares at a nominal value of 0.001 pence each were issued.

23. Otherreserves

Fair value and other non-distributable reserves of £15.4m (2020: £15.4m) remain unchanged in the current financial period and include £2.8m relating
to a capital contiibution movement as part of the share reduction exercise, £11.9m related fo the fair value of the investment as part of the acquisition
under IFRS3 and the remaining £0.6m related to the movemenf in fair value of contingent considerations outstanding, all of which took place in the
prior financial penod

Other distributable reserve consists of £67.9m {2020: £67. 9m) relating to the transfer from share copnol and share premium as a result of the share
reduction undertgkenin the pnor financial period.

Cumulative translation reserves for the year amounted to £2.75m (2020: £2m).

24, Retained earnings

£ 000
At 1 November 2018 ' ! -
Loss for the year (7,993)
Dividends paid (1.131)
At 31 January 2020 - , o (9.124)
Profit for the year - ) 4,309
Dividends paid . ‘ : (562)
At 31 January 2020 - - ' < (5,378)

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd ’ ’ Annual Report & Accounts: 2021



» 43 Financial Statements
’ Notes to the Consolldcfed Financial Siotemenfs

continued

Notes to the Consolldaied Flnancml Sfatemenfs

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

~

25. Group undedokmgs and related purty trunsocllons
Banking guarcniees

Group guarantees have been entered into by the companies listed below and relate to any poyment due under the banking ogreemeni The
following companies have given security to Hcrvey Nash Group Ltd, the Company:

Name of company ' ) Security ' . Security
Harvey Nash Ltd : . Group guarantee Debenture
Broadbay Networks Inc ] : Group guarantee -

: . As at 31 As at 31
Group undertakings ' January 2021 " January 2020,
Included in loans from group undertakings are the following outstanding balances as at 31 January 2021. £ 000 ’ £ 000

Loans receivable

DBAY Funds . . . ) ' 1 ) 1
The Power of Talent Topco Limited ' - .
The Power of Talent Finco Limited . ’ ; - -
The Power of Talent Midco Limited ) B . 844 ’ 844
The Power of Talent Plano Limited ‘ o ‘ . . o

Loans payable _
DBAY Advisors . : ) - ) -
The Power of Tclent Midco Limited . ’ (912) (344)

DBAY Adbvisors and DBAY Funds are considered related parties due to theirinvestment in and.control of 1he Group's ultnmcie parent The Power of
Talent Topco Limited. . .

26. Subsidiaries
The Group consists of a parent Company. Harvey Nash Groub Holdings Ltd, incorporated in the UK and registered in England and Wales. and a
number of directly and indirectly held subsidiaries around the world.

All subsidiary companies are consoiidated. The directors consider that the investments in subsidiaries should not be impaired at period end.

At 31 January 2021 the Group was a wholly owned subsidiary of The Power of Talent Kartanesi Ltd (compohy number: 11665541) incorporated and
registered in England and Wales. .

The ultimate parent of the Group, and the only entity to prepare consolldoted accounts, is The Power of Talent Topco L|m|fed {company number:
132333C) incorporated ‘and registered in the Isle of Man.

The ultimate controlling party is DBAY Advisors Limited (company number; 126150C} incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man.

A full list of the Company's subsidianes at 31 January 2021 is shown on pages 52-53.

27. Pensnons

The Group operates separate defined ‘contribution pension,schemes in all locations. The Group s total contnbuhon to such schemes for the 12 month
period ended 31 Jonuary 2021 was £3.1m (2020: £4.3m}. -~

The Group's largest pension scheme is a defined contribution scheme provided by Scottish Widows in the UK. Employees are invited to join the
scherne aulomalically on completion of three months’ qualifying service, although senior employees may be invited to join earlier at the discretion of
the Directors. The Group contributes 5% and the employee contributes 5% of the employee's basic earnings (excluding bonuses) to the plan.

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd * Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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For ihe 12 month period ended 31 January 2021 . '

28. Leases’

Leases classified under IFRS 16" Leases

On adoption, the Group applied a modified retrospecinve approdch under which right-of use assets are recognised and initially measured at the
same amount as lease liability on the déate of initial application. Under this approach, prior information has not been resioied and is reported under
IAS 17 ‘Leases’. IFRS 16 leases are disclosed within note 17.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments, discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The lease term
comprises the non-cancellable period of the coniract, together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease where the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option. Subsequently the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability,
and reducing it by the ledse payments made. The lease liability is remeasured when the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercnse an
extension or termination option. :

Lease liabilities are shown separately on the consolidated balance sheet in current liabilities and non-current liabilities.

As at 31 - Asat 31

January 2021 Janvary 2020

£ 000 £ 000

Current-licbiliﬁ_es - leases 6,164 ' 6.640
Non-Current liabilities - leases o _ : 3743 4227
9,907 10,867

The Group has elected to apply exemptions for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. For these leases the lease -
payments are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease commliments
The Group hos total future mummum lease poymenfs under non-cancellable operoting leases for each of the following periods:

Asat 31 ' Asat 31
January 2021 January 2021

Vehicles, plant

Properfy and equipment
£ 000 £'000
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases: ' ) '
Within one year . 4 . ' 181 1,004
Later than one year and less than five years . . : - 1.007
- : _ 181 T o20n
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For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

29. Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank overdraft, invoice: -discounting and various items such as trade receivables and Irode payables
that arise directly from its operations. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is approximately equal to their book values.

Additional disclosures are set out.in the accounting policies relating to risk management. An explanation of the role that financial instruments have
had during the period in the management of the Group's funding liquidity and foreign exchange is provided within note 4. . .

In accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial tnstruments”, the Groub has reviewed all contracts and confirmed that none contain embedded derivatives that
.are required to be assessed and measured as per the {equiremgnts‘set outin the standard. There were nomotériql embedded derivatives at 31
January 2021. ' '

Borrowing facilities
Invoice discount facility.

At 31 January 2021 the Group has a syndicated invoice discounting facility of £20m. This facility is allocated ocross the Group's operations as follows:
£38min the UK (Harvey Nash: £35m, Crimson: £3m), EUR equivalent of £5m in Ireland, EUR equivalent of £30m in the Netherlands, EUR equivalent of
£9.5m in Belgium aind the USD equivalent of £7.5m in the USA.

The overdraft facilities are repayable on demand and the invoice discobnting facilities are avdilable on arolling 12-month basis. The rates on all
facilities are floating. All conditions precedent to the overdraft and invoice discounting were met at 31 January 2021.

As at 31 Asat31 As at 31 As at 31

Janvary 2021 Januory 2021 January 2020 January 2020
Drawn borrowing facilities ' ) ; ) '000 £'000 ‘000 . £'000
Invoice discounting chilifies - UK £ 15.836 15,836 £ 15,528 15.528
Invoice discoUnﬁng facilities - Ireland € (687) (608) € (1.803) (1.516)
Invoice disco_unﬂhg facilities - Belgium € 3.432 3.039 € 11,961 4 10,058
Invoice discounting facilities - Netherlands € 14,007 12,404 ‘ € 26,341 22,150
Invoice discounting facilities - USA $ 4,174 . 3,046 $ 5.306 4,037
Invoice discounting facilities - Crimson £ 82 . 82 g 609 ‘ 609
Total 33,799 ) 50,866
‘ Asvaf3l A;atSI As at 31 As at 31
. January 2021 January 2021 .. January 2020 January 2020
Undrawn borrowing facilities ' - '000 £000 . : ‘000 £000
Invoice discounting facilities - UK . £ 19,164 19,164 £ 19,472 19,472
Invoice discounting facilities - Ireland € 6,333 5,608 € 7.749 6,516; .
Invoice discounting facilities - Belgium € 7,296 6.46) € 1,715 1,442
Invoice discounting facilities - Netherlands € i9,870 17,596 € 6.957 5,850
Invoice discounting facilities - USA $ 6,104 © 4,454 $ 4,552 3.463
Invoice, discounting facilities - Crimson £ 2,918 - 2918 £ 2.3%91 2.391

Total . C 56,201 o ‘ 39,134

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd . . Annual Report & Accounts
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29. Financial instruments continued

Borrowing facilities  continued

Senior finance debt )

As at 1 February 2020 the Group had a senior finance facility of £20m comprising of two term loans "A" and "B" each of £10m. Term loan “A"is repaid in
quarterly instalments, term loan "B” remains at £10m until final repayment date on 31 October 2023. The loans accrue interest at Libor plus 4% and Libor
plus 4:5% respectively and are paid quarierly. During the current financial period the Group increased this facility by term "C" which amounted to an
additional £5.8m. Term Ioon "C"is repaid in quorterly installments and accrues interest at libor plus 4.25%.

12 month per.lod 15 month period
ended 31 ended 31

January 2021 January 2020
Senior-finance debt ' ' £000 - " £ 000
Opening Balance : ’ ' 17.900 -
Additions 4 5,769 20,000
Repayments - : L C0.917) (2,100}

Closing Balance ‘ o 21752 17,900 .
Current ' ‘ . . ' 3,309 2,100
Non-current - . 18,443 15,800
30. Deferred consideration ‘ 12 month - 15month
. : . perlod ended period ended
31 January 31 Janvary
202) . 2020
£ 000 £ 000
Opening Balance . . . 687 Co-
Acquisifions ' ’ : 14,101 4,368
Fair value gain on contingent consideration 19 (629)
Consideration settled ) ' (194) {3.000)
Foreign exchange - ' l N : ’ (779) (52)
Closing Balance ' . 13,834 687
Current ] : R 7.190 175
Non-current : : ) : 6,644 512
31. Loanreceivable ' S 12 month 15 month
Nash Technologies_ GmbH peg?‘j::::: pegﬁ:::;:
. 2021 2020
' ' ’ £ 000 £'000
Opening 8alance o 1.934 -
Acquisifions : - : - 2,053
Foreign exchange ’ . - (19)
Closing Balance . : . 1,934 - 1,934

The Group has a £1.9m (€2.3m) loan receivable from Nash Technologies GmbH included within non-current assets. The rate of interest is three-month
EURIBOR plus 1.5%. The loan is due to mature on 30 June 2023.
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32." Business combinations
Harvey Nash Group Lid : ‘ ’ .

On 20 October 2020, the Group acquired 100% of the share capiial of Latitude 36 Inc, a technology recruitment business with sub5|d|cr|es and offices
in the United Stated of America and India for a consideration of £30.2m. On this date the transaction was identified under "IFRS3 - Business -
Combinations”.

The provisional fair value of the net assets acquired is approximately equal to the acquiree's carrying amount. The excess of consideration above net
asset values has been attributed in full to goodwill as no other intangible assets have been identified. .

The amounts of revenue and profit of the acquiree since the acquisition date mc:ludecl in the consolidated stotement of comprehensive income for
the reporhng period were £15.3m and £0.7m respectively.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets ccquiréd and the goodwill recognised were as follows: _ ) . £ 000

Purchased consideration

Cash paid . 16,105
Deferred consideration ) . . : 14,101
Total purchase consideration ) ' 30,205
The assets and liabilities arising at the date of acquisiion were as follows: : . - : ’ : £'000
Cash . o o . 1,186
Property, plant and equipment ) 51
Right of use assets A ) 1,124
Trade and other receivables ' ' 11,398
‘Borrowings . ' - (6.177)
Deferred tox liability \ . : (2750)
Trade and other pcydbles 4 ) (4.264)
Lease liabilities on right of use assets A A A ) : . (1.124)
Intangible assets identified C . ' o 13,095
Net identifiable assets acquired : 12,539
Goodwill * ' , ' 17,666
Total purchase consideration . ’ ) ' ' ’ 30,205
Cash outfiow to acquiré subsidiary : . £ 000
Cash consideration - . {16.105)
Cash balances acquired L 1,186
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired . : : ('14,91 9)
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Company Statement of Financial Posmon

As at 31 January 2021

© 31 January 2021

31 Janvary 2020

Total equity

Notes £000 - £'000
ASSETS ‘
Non-current assets
Investments 3 108,627 98,627
Loans receivable from group undertakings - 845 845
' 109,472 ‘ 99,472
Current assets . ‘
Trade and other receivables 267 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ! 2
268 2
Total assets 109,740 99,474
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (2 (2
Borrowings (3.309) (2,100)
(3.311) (2,102)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (18,443) (15.800)
' Loans poyoblé to group undertakings - 5 (1.055) . (3.653)
: (19,498) (19.453)
Total liabilities (22,809) (21,555)
Net assets 86,931 77,919
" EQUITY ’
Ordinary shares 6 } 1
Share Premium ’ 10,000 -
Fair value and other non-distributable reserves. 14,751 14,751
Other distributable reserves 67.969 67,969
Retained loss  (5.790) (4,802)
86,931 77,919

The company financial statements on pdges 48 - 51 were approved by the board and signed on its behalf by Chris Tilley on 26 May 2021.

Chris Tilley Date: 26 May 2021
, »

Director

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd
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Company Siaiemeni of Changes in Equuiy

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

Fair valve and

other non- Other
share capital Share d]s"::‘s’::’: distributable Retained rotal
premivm reserves earnings

£000 . £ 000 £000 £'000. £ 000 £'000

Balance ot 1 November 2018 ) B i - - - -

Loss for'the period S - - - (3671) . (3.671)

Gain on fair value of investments . o : - - 11.918 Co- - 11,918

Total comprehensive (loss) /income for the period A - - 11,918 - {3.671) . 8.247
Shares issued during the period 63,323 . 3.324 - - . - 66,647

Share reduction during. the period : (63322) . (3.324) - 66,646 - .

Capital contribution adjustments \ - - 2833 1,323 - 4,156

Dividends paid . ‘ ' : - - - - (1.131) (1.131)

Balance at 31 January 2020 . ) 1 - 14,751 67,969 (4.802) 77.919

" Loss for.the period . . . - - - - (426) (426)

Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the period o - - - - (42¢6) (426}

Shares issued during the period ’ - 10,000 - - . - 10,000

Dividends paid : ‘ - - - - - (562) © (562)

Balance at 31 January 2021 : 1 10,000 14,751 67,969 (5.790) 86,931
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Financial Statements ‘ ‘ ' ' 50 <
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ‘ ' ’

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021

1. Significant accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The Company meéts the definition of a
qualifying entity under Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS'} 100, issued by the Financial Reporting Council {'FRC'). Accordingly, the financial *
statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 '‘Reduced Disclosure Framework' as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to business
combinations, share-based payment, financial instruments, capital moncgement presentation of a cash-flow statement, standards not yet effective,
impairment of assets and certain reloied party transactions. .

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared on ihe historical cost basis, which is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for the goods and services. The principal occounhng policies cdopied are the same as 'those set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements except as noted below.

No critical judgements were applied in the parent company other those discussed in note § to the consolidated financiol statements.

Invesimenfs

Investments in sub5|d|ones are stated at cost less, where oppropnote provisions for impairment. Impoxrment reviews are conducted annually ond
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Animpairment loss is recognised in the
income statement for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of sale and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Assets are Grouped at-the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

2. Loss for the period

The loss for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021 in the financial statements of Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd, the Company, was £0.4m
(2020: loss £3.7m). As permitied by s408 Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account is presented in respect of the parent Company.

) 12 month ) 15 month

3. Investment in subsidiaries peg?‘j::::: peg?i:::;;

: . - 2021 2020
Shares in Group undérfokings ’ ’ £ 000 £ 000
Opening Balance . 98.627 -
Additions A : 4 0000 98,627
Closing Balance ' . : 108,627 98,627

During the period the Company increased its investment in Harvey Nash Group Lid by £10m in order to facilitate the Latitude 36 acquisition.
] - . +

The directors consider that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net asséts. The carrying value of the investments was
tested against discounted future cash flows during the period. The forecasts were based on.post-tax cash flows derived from the approved budget for
FY2021 and the long-term sirategic plan. Management considers that these forecasts are achievable. Should future cash flows be unable to support
the carrying value, an impairment would be recognised.

A full list of subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by the Company as at 31 January 2021 is presented on pages 52 - 53.

_.Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd . Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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"4. ‘Loans receivable from group undertakings

As at 31 - Asat 31

January 2021 January 2020

£ 000 £'000

Amounts owed by group undertakings o . 845 845

' Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured and may be paid by the borrower at any time unless otherwise agreed between Gréup
undertakings. The interest is charged at a 2.5% margin over LIBOR in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parties. These are not
expecled to be repcrd within the next 12 months.

Information on each loan is included in note 25 of the notes to the consolidated financial siatements.

5. Loans payable to group undertakings -

As at 31 As at 31

January 2021 ~ January 2020

£'000 *£'000

Amounts owed to group undertakings ' (1,055) {3.653)

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured and may be paid by the Company at any time unless otherwise agreed betwé_en Group
undertakings. Interest is charged'at @ 2.5% margin over the bank base rate applicable in the jurisdiction of the lender, in accordance with format loan
* agreements between the parties. These are not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months.

Information on each loan is included in note 25 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

6. Share capital

Asat31 As at 31

Janvary 2021 January 2020

' £000 £' 000
Allotted and fully paid )

73,323,183 (2020: 63,323,183) ordinary shares of 0.001 pence each 1 . 1

During the period 10,000,000 shares af a nominal value of 0.1 pence each were issued.

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd - ) Annudl Report & Accounts  2021.
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Full List of Subsidiaries of Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd

Full list of Subs_idiaries i

% Holding Principal activity
United Kingdom . .
110 Bishopsgate, London, EC2N 4AY _
Harvey Nash 'Ltd 100% Recruiimenli consultancy
NashTech L’rd 100% Sbftwore consultancy
Crimson Ltd ‘ IdO% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Lid 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Holdings Ltd 100% Non-trading
Ireland )
Unit 2, 51 Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2 . .
Harvey Nyosh (Ireland) Ltd 100% ‘Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Software Ltd 100% Software consultancy
Netherlands -
Industrieweg 4 Maarssen, 3606 AS
Harvey Nash BV 100% Recruitment consuliancy
Harvey Nash Newco BV 100% Non-trading
Harvey Nash Perspective BVV ' 100% Recruitment consultancy
Germany

' Grafenberger Allee 337a-c¢ 40235 Diisseldorf
Harvey Nash GmbH ' v 100% Recruitment consultancy
Nash Direct GmbH 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact éxecuﬁves {Germany) GmbH 100% Non-frading
Belgium
Nieuwe genfesieenwég2l/3, 1702 Groot-ijgaarden
Harvey Nash IT Consulting NV 100% Recruitment consuliancy
Harvey Nash NV 100% Rec;uiiment consultancy .
Residentie Docklands, Indiéstraat 2, 2000 Antwerpen
eMenka NV 100% Recruitment consultancy
Talent {T BVBA 100% Recruitment consultancy
Team4Talent BVBA 100% Recruitment consultancy
Pro-Cured BVBA 100% - Procurement
Switzerland
Badenerstrasse 15, Postfach 8021 Zirich - .
Harvey Nash AG 100% Recruitment consultancy
Impact Executives Holdings AG © 100% Nén—troding
0 T

Poland )
Al Jerozolimskie 56C, 00-803 Warsaw
Harvey Nash Alumni Sp.zc.0.  ° Warsaw 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Technology Pblond Sp.zo.0.._ Wcrscw - 100% Recruitment consultancy
India
5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM, Birla Science Centre Cc;mplex. Adarshnagar, Hydetabdd } )
‘Harvey Nash Private Limifed L A Hyderabad - 100% Recruitment consultancy

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Lid
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Full list of Subsidiaries

% Holding T Principal activity

Sweden .
‘World Trade Center, Kungsbron 1, Box 843, 101 34 Stockholm .
IE Management AB . . 100% : " Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Recruitment AB ) ' ' ' \ 100% . Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Services AB . I_OO% Recruitm(_am consultancy
PAT Monogeméni AB : : 100% ) Recruitment consultancy
Finland
Unionsgatan 22, 00130 Helsinki
Harvey Nash OY ' . g 100% . Recruitment consultancy
Norway
Haakon VII's Gate 6, 0161 Oslo .
Harvey Nash AS ) ' : ’ ' ’ o 100% : ' Recruitment consultancy
United States of Americo‘
1680 Route 23 North, Suite 300, Wayne, NJ 074‘70 .
Harvey Nash Inc S 100% Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Holdings Inc . ) . 100% Non-trading
SBS Group Inc ' 100% Non-frading
" Broadbay Networks Inc . , : 100% , Non-trading
Tech Discovery LLC - ' . 100% A : Non-trading
Euro Systems International Inc : 100% - Non-trading
Applied Concepts I.nc ' 100% o : Non-trading
Scientific & Business SystemsInc . ) 100% Non-trading
. 810; Crescent Centre Dr., Svite 120, Franklin, Tennessee 37067 ' ) )
Latitude 36 Inc . ' : 100% . Recruitment consultancy
Japan i
Toky6 Square Gardén 14F, WeWork, 3-1-1 Kyobashi, Chuo-kv, Tokyo .
Harvey Nash Japan KK : 100% . Software consultancy
Vietnam )
364 Cong Hoa Street, Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh City . E v .
~ Harvey Nash (Vietnam] Company Ltd ' © 100% Softw.are cpnsulfoncy' .
British Virgin Islands
P.O Box 957, Oﬂshor'e Incorporaﬁon?,Cenhe, Road Toyv.n, Tortola ‘
Harvey Nash Lid (8VI) ’ 100% ' Non-trading
Singapore ' . : '
One Raffles Quay, North Tower, level 25 '
Harvey Nash Singopore PTE Ltd ' 100% ' Non-trading
71 Robinson Road, #13-129. ' : ' :
NashTech Singapore PTE Ltd - E - 100% - Software consuliancy
Hong Kong
Unit 1501, 15/F Henley Building. 5 Queen’s Road Central, Central
Harvey Nash (Hong Kong]} Ltd 100% o Non-trading

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd . Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Offices’

United Kingdom
London

110 Bishopsgate
London EC2N 4AY

Birmingham
4301 Waterside Centre
Birmingham Business Park

Birmingham B37 7YE

. Lleeds
Marshalls Mill
Mcrsholl'street
Leeds LS11 9Y)

Manchester

Lowry House

17 Marble Street
Manchester M2 3AW

Newcastle

Hoults Yard, Walker Road
Néwccsﬂe-upon-Tyne
NE6 2HL .

Nottingham
11 Clarendon Street
Nottingham, NG1 5HR

Bristol
Ten Victoria Street
Bristo! BS1 68N

Edinburgh
.Waverley Gdte

2-4 Waterloo Place
Edinburgh, EH1 3EG

Glasgow
2 West Regent Street
Glasgow G2 1RW

reland - ' '
Dublin

Mount Street Lower
Grand Canal Dock:
Dublin 2

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd

Belgium
Antwerp
Houtdok-Noordkaoi

) 12 - 2030 Antwerpen

Brussels
Nieuwe Gentesteenweg 21/3

1702 Groot-Bijgaarden

Ghent

Huize Minne
Kortrijksesteenweg 62
9830 Sint-Martens-Latem

Netherlands -

Utrecht.

Industrieweg 4

Maarssen, Utrecht 3606 AS .

Groningen
\(erlengde Hereweg 173
Groningen, 9721 AP

Germany

" Dusseldorf

Grafenberger Allee 337a-c
40235 Disseldorf '

Stuttgart
TUbinger Strasse 26
D-70178 Stuttgart

Munich
Leonrodstrasse 52
D-80636 MUnchen .

Poland

Warsaw

Al. Jerozolimskie 56C
00-803 Warsaw

finland -

Helsinki
Unionsgatan 22
00130 Helsinki

- Australia

Sydney
Suite 14.02, Level. 14

20 Hunfer Street

Sydney NSW 2000

Sweden

Stockholm

World Trade Center,
Kungsbron 1

Box 843, 101 36 Stockholm

Gothenburg
S6dra Larmgatan 20
411 16 Godteborg

Malmé
Gibraltargatan 7
21118 Malimd

Lund ‘

Kyrkogatan 98

222 22 Lund
NérWay

Oslo -

Haakon Vil's Gate 6
0161 Oslo

. Switzerland

Zirich
Badenerstrasse 15 -
Postfach 8021 Zurich

Denmark

Copenhagen -

Regus Tuborg Havn, 3 sale
Tuborg Boulevard 12

2900 Hellerup, Copephogen

USA

New Jersey

1700 Route 23 North
Suite 100

Wayne, NJ 07470

Catlifornia

394465 Paseo Padre Porkw'cy
Suite 3000

Fremont, CA 94538

Tennessee
810, Cresent Cenlie Dr.,
Suite 120

Frankiin, Tennessee 37067

New York

401 Park Avenue South
9th Floor

New York, NY 10016

Washington
2101 4th Avenue, Suite 720
Seattle, WA 98121

India

Hyderabad

5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM
Birta Science Centre Complex

Adarshnagar, Hyderabad

Vietnam

Hanoi

* 4F & 6F, HITC Building

239 Xuan Thuy Road
Cau Giay District, Hanoi
Ho Chi Minh' City
e.town Building

364 Cong Hoa Sireet
Tdn Binh District

Ho Chi Minh City

Japan

Tokyo

Tokyo Square Garden 14F
weWork

3-1-1 Kyobashi

Chuo-ku, Tokyo

Singapore
Singapore

One Raffles Quay
North Tower, Level 25

Singapore

71 Robinson Street
#13-129

Singapore. 068895
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» 55 ~Information
Officers and professional advisers

~ Officers and professional advisers

Officers «
Directors -
Bev White
ChrisTiley
David Morrison

Michael Branigan

.
Gary Browning
Michael Haxby
Diederik Vos

Streisan Bevan

Professional advisers

_Solicitors

Addleshaw Goddard LLP
60 Chiswell Street
London ‘

EC1Y 4AG

Adrian Gunn Joanna Macleod United Kingdom *
Secretary - C :
Chris Tilley . Independent Auditor

Deloitte LLP

. . Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Registered office

- Harvey Nash Group Holdings Lid - 1 New Street Square

110 Bishopsgate Lond?n EC4A 3'BZ

London EC2N 4AY
' : Principal bankers
Registered number i National Westminster 8ank plc
11464274 (England and Wales) - © ) 280 Bishopsgate
' . London EC2M 4RB
Contact details
+44 (0) 20 7333 0033
. info@harveynash.com

www harveynash.com

Social Media
o twitter.com/HarveyNashGroup

m linkedin.com/company/Harvey-Nash

o facebook.com/HarveyNashGroup

Ultimate parent

The Power of Talent Topco Limited
Company number: 132333C . _ .
Registered in the Isle of Man

Harvey Nash Group Holdings Ltd Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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